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Sub: Submission of Notice convening the 30th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) along with 

Annual Report for FY 2024-25 for M/s Ishan International Limited (“the Company”) 

 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 30 and Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
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following documents: 

 

1. Notice of the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Friday, September 

26, 2025 at 02:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”). 

 

2. Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

The aforesaid documents are also available on the Company’s website at www.ishanglobal.com. 

 

You are requested to kindly take the same on record. 

              Thanking You, 

For Ishan International limited 

(Listed with NSE Emerge) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Shantanu Srivastava 

Managing Director & CEO 

DIN: 00022662 
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CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH 
 

 

My dear Shareholders, 

It gives me great pleasure to extend a warm welcome to all of you to the 30th Annual General 

Meeting of Ishan International Limited. This meeting is being hosted on a digital platform which 

has an advantage that it enables more shareowners to participate and interact. 

 

Background and Direction for Immediate Future 

 

 

Friends, your company has completed 30 years of operation. Heartiest and most sincere 

congratulations to all of you for your support. During this period, we have seen a steady growth in 

business even though in some years we could not achieve the pace as some of us might have 

expected. Its noteworthy and a matter of pride that our export of Sugar Machinery has seen 

continuous growth over these years despite growing competition across the globe. We have 

successfully added several new items of this massive industry in the last 2 years. We have also 

added USA as a buyer in our bid to diversify to new countries. Further, we are set to add some 

new countries of Africa in the current year 2025 – 26 and we are confident of the same. 

Unfortunately, the new stiff tariffs imposed by the US government will create hurdles in some of 

our exports to USA. However, we are pleased to inform you that Ishan has already started planning 

in a creative manner how we can minimize the damage caused by the new tariffs so that our exports 

to US do not suffer. We are absolutely determined to ensure that exports to USA gain further 

momentum despite the tariffs. 

 

Our government’s policies continue to be business friendly and we highly appreciate the support 

extended by the government to the MSME sector. This has been the backbone of MSME sector’s 

growth over the last decade. 

 

Environment being one of the top most priorities all over the world, projects for Renewable Energy 

and Pollution Control continue to have endless demand. India is one of the leading countries in 

manufacturing of equipment for Renewable Energy and Pollution Control. With this vision nearly 

17 years ago, Ishan took a major step by getting into promotion of export of equipment for small 

Hydro Power plants from India to ASEAN countries back in 2008. Since then Ishan has promoted 

export of over 40 projects ranging from 1 MW to 60 MW each. This gave Ishan a major head up 

in Vietnam and will continue to help us in our effort towards business development with our 

European partners ChKD Energy s.r.o. during the current year 2025 – 26 and for years to come. 



 

The Quality Management System under ISO 9001 : 2015 helps us tremendously in our endeavour 

to build world class business with profitability and growth as top most priorities. Friends, we would 

like to assure you that despite occasional hiccups in business and global policy changes, your 

company is set to make a far greater contribution to Bharat’s prosperity and progress as well as to 

contributing towards reduction of global warming. 

 

As our top most mantra, building long term relationships on the basis of value addition to both 

ends of the supply chain continues to be our USP. 

 

Growth and Profitability as our Focal Point 

Dear Friends, last year we had informed you about the growth oriented short-term targets that we 

have set for Ishan leading up to the Financial Year 2025-26. A brief review is being given for your 

information. 

1. To reach a turnover of 100 crores, maximize EBITDA and keep operations cost effective. Given 

the stiff global competition and increasing costs, this is a challenge though as everyone knows we 

take pride in successfully meeting the challenges. More than the turn over, it is the growth and 

profitability of the company that is important for stakeholders and that is always our main focus. 

2. To become one of the largest Indian suppliers of Sugar Machinery in ASEAN countries. Surely, 

we are well on our way to achieve this goal. 

3. To have the largest market share in Renewable Energy sector, especially in small Hydro, in 

Vietnam. There has been a setback in achieving this target due to the delay in finalization of 

projects in Vietnam on account of changing government policies. Despite this delay we continue 

to have our eyes set on this important target and we are determined to achieve it. 

4. To increase focus on projects related to climate control. Protection of environment is an 

important goal for all of us around the globe and our company is also increasing its focus on 

Renewable Energy Projects, Pollution Control and Re-cycling of Plastic Waste etc. 

 

 

GRIP Based Marketing Strategy 

As you know, in order to achieve these goals, we have defined and implemented a powerful 4- 

Dimensional Model. Your company being a Government of India certified Star Export House, we 

aim to achieve far reaching and much higher goals leading up to 2045 (long term goals) when we 

celebrate golden jubilee of the company. While I feel that it is too early to define exact targets for 

2045, it is surely necessary to have a vision with respect to where we want to see ourselves in 

2045. For me that vision is GRIP – Growth (exponential increase of sales year on year supported 

by addition of manufacturing in our business), Reputation (global brand image and brand 



 

recognition), Innovation (creative thinking and knowledge-based growth) and Profit (creating 

value for shareholders). 

The 4-D Strategy initiated 2 years ago will bear fruits and ensure sustainable growth for years to 

come. Our market coverage will see rapid expansion as well. While we will continue to focus on 

the ASEAN countries of South-East Asia, contributions will also come from new markets in India, 

Africa and North America. 

As we aggressively and strategically work towards achieving this vision, we have also kept a sound 

Risk Management System in place to provide safeguards that are essential in business. 

Our honourable Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi, whom I call “The Most Amazing Person in 

the World” has given us a priceless vision. The vision of Viksit Bharat @2047. This vision is 

achievable and is also highly rewarding as we move along the Amritkal leading up to 2047. This 

extraordinary leadership has rarely been seen before in the world and it is important to point out 

that once we become a Viksit Rashtra, poverty will be completely eliminated from our country, a 

task that has eluded us in the past. I am proud to add here that we have started a new drive and 

initiative called MSME and Viksit Bharat @2047. Under this initiative we are conducting round 

table discussions across Bharat involving all stakeholders of the MSME sector. So far we have 

received thumping response in the 2 events held at Nagpur and Ahmedabad. This response not 

only encourages us but I am sure that it will actually help the entire MSME sector in its desire to 

make a major contribution towards making Bharat a Viksit Rashtra by 2047 or even before that. 

Dear Shareowners, as we continue to evolve, we remain committed to growth, shareholder value, 

customer satisfaction, value to our employees, our responsibility of creating jobs and our corporate 

social responsibility. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareowners for their trust in the company, 

our employees who are the most important team members, customers who define our existence, 

our suppliers, consultants, government of India, Bank of India, auditors and advisors for their 

guidance and encouragement that helps us to emerge victorious. 

Thank you very much 

Warm regards 

Jai Hind 

Jai Shri Mata Ji  

SHANTANU SRIVASTAVA 

Managing Director & CEO 



 

NOTICE 
 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirtieth (30th) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 

members of Ishan International Limited will be held on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 02:30 

P.M. (IST) through Video Conference (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to 

transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements 

of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the 

reports of Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors thereon: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors 

and the Statutory Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby 

received, considered, approved and adopted.” 

 

2. Re-appointment of Mrs. Neelam Gupta (DIN: 06823562), as Director, who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (the “Act”), Mrs. Neelam Gupta (DIN: 06823562), Director of the Company, who 

retires by rotation at this Thirtieth (30th) Annual General Meeting, and being eligible has 

offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 

Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 



 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

3. To consider and approve the appointment of Secretarial Auditors of the Company: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 179, 204 and other 

applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Rule 8 of The 

Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (the “Act”) and 

Regulation 24A and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force) read with circulars issued thereunder from time to time, on the basis of 

recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, consent of the 

members be and is hereby accorded to appoint Tanisha Srivastava & Associates, Company 

Secretary in Practice (Peer Review No. 2916/2023), as the Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company for a period of 5 financial 

years commencing from financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30, at such professional fees as 

may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditor from 

time to time. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary of the 

Company, be and is hereby authorized to provide the necessary assistance for conducting 

the aforesaid audit. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are 

hereby severally or jointly authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as they consider 

necessary including filing of relevant e-forms with the Registrar of Companies and such 

other things as may be necessary or expedient to implement this resolution.” 

 

4. Regularization of Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN-11270865) as Additional Non-Executive 

Independent Director and his appointment as an Independent Director of the 

Company: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN-11270865), who was appointed as an 

Additional Director based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 



 

 

Committee (“NRC”) w.e.f. September 02, 2025 in pursuance of provisions of Section 161 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association, to hold the office up to 

the date of this Annual General Meeting be and hereby appointed as Director of the 

Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 

all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made 

thereunder, if any, and the applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the 

appointment of Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN-11270865), who meets the criteria of 

Independence as provided under the Acts and has submitted a declaration to that effect be 

and is hereby appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a 

term of 5 (five) years commencing from September 25, 2025 up to September 25, 2030, 

whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are 

hereby authorized to sign and execute necessary agreements, writings, documents and be 

and is hereby authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving 

effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, 

expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 



 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUAUNT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 

 

ITEM NO. 3 

 

Pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) vide SEBI 

Notification dated December 12, 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 

and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, at their respective meetings held on 

May 22, 2025 have approved and recommended the appointment of Tanisha Srivastava & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretary (Peer Review No. 2916/2023), as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 

conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for a term of up to 5 (Five) consecutive years i.e. from FY 

2025-26 to FY 2029-30, at remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) plus applicable 

taxes and other out-of-pocket expenses, as mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company 

and the Secretarial Auditors. 

 

Ms. Tanisha Srivastava, Practicing Company Secretary is having professional experience spanning over 

more than 7 years specializing in Secretarial Audits, Due Diligence, Corporate Compliance Management, 

and Transaction Advisory Services to the Corporate world on various matters. 

 

Ms. Tanisha Srivastava, Practicing Company Secretary, have provided her consent to be appointed as 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive Financial Years (FY) commencing 

from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 and also confirmed that she is not disqualified to be appointed as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice of the 

AGM, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company. 

 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of 

the Notice of AGM for approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

ITEM NO. 4 

 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, appointed 

Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN: 11270865) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive) of the Company with 

effect from September 02, 2025 under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the said 

provisions, he holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. 

The Company has received from Mr. Srivastava the requisite consent to act as Director in Form DIR-2, 

along with a declaration confirming his independence under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 16 

of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”). 

Accordingly, the Board recommends his appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company for a term of five years, commencing from September 25, 2025 up to September 25, 2030, not 

liable to retire by rotation. 



 

 
 

 

The Brief Profile of Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN: 11270865) for reference: 

 A seasoned media professional with over 15 years’ experience in broadcast journalism, content 

strategy, and editorial management. 

 Currently serving as Associate Executive Producer at Network18 Media & Investments Ltd. (since 

October 2018), handling editorial content, live programming, and digital operations. 

 Held senior editorial positions at India News (2013–2018) and Aaj Tak (TV Today Network) 

(2006–2013), leading high-impact programming, breaking news, and newsroom operations. 

 Academic background includes: 

o Master’s Degree in Mass Communication (GJSTU, Hisar) 

o Post Graduate Programme in Journalism (TV Today Media Institute, 2006) 

o Bachelor of Science (Rohilkhand University, 2005) 

 Recognized for his editorial acumen, leadership, and governance orientation, he brings strong 

industry insights and independent judgment to the Board. 

 
Your Directors are of the opinion that the Company will benefit immensely from the appointment of Mr. 

Srivastava as an Independent Director, as his expertise will add value to the Board’s deliberations and 

governance practices. Details required as per Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standards-2 issued 

by ICSI and approved by MCA, a complete Annexure is attached as Annexure 2 to the Notice. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Salil Srivastava, is interested 

or concerned, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice of the AGM, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any, in the Company. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of 

the Notice of AGM for approval of the Members as an Special Resolution. 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 



 

 

 

NOTES: 

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”) setting out all material facts concerning the special business set out in the Notice as 

Item no. 3, 4 & 5 is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice. 

 

2. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 

read with General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 and Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 

dated May 12, 2020 read with SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 

3, 2024 any other relevant circulars issued by MCA or SEBI (hereinafter collectively 

referred as “Applicable Circulars”) have permitted companies to hold their AGM through 

VC/OAVM without physical presence of Members till September 30, 2025 and prescribed 

the procedures and manner of conducting the AGM through VC/ OAVM. 

 

3. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”), and Secretarial Standards 2 (“SS- 

2”) on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India notified 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), the details of Director seeking re- 

appointment due to retirement by rotation are provided in the “Annexure-I” to the Notice. 

 

4. The complete details with respect to the Director proposed for appointed as per Listing 

Regulations, the Act and Secretarial Standards 2 issued by ICSI and approved by MCA  

is provided in the “Annexure-II” to the Notice. 

 

5. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the provisions of the Act and 

the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 30th AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM herein 

after called as “e-AGM”. In view of the same, the registered office of the Company shall 

be deemed to be the venue of the AGM. 

 

6. The Company has appointed KFin Technologies Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents, 

to provide to provide facility for voting through remote e-voting, for participation and e- 

voting in the AGM through VC/OAVM and e-voting during the AGM. The detailed 

procedure for joining the meeting via Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual 

Means (OAVM) is provided in the Notice. 

 

7. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the 

Members on September 19, 2025 (cut-off date). Only those Members whose names are 

recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their 

votes by remote e-voting or e-voting during the AGM. Those who are not Members on the 

cut-off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for information purposes only. 

 



 

8. Pursuant to the Applicable Circulars issued by MCA on conducting the AGM 

through VC/OAVM: 

 

I. Members can attend the meeting through log in credentials provided to them to connect 

to VC/ OAVM. Physical attendance of the Members at the Meeting venue has been 

dispensed with. 

II. Appointment of proxy to attend and cast vote on behalf of the member is not available 

for this AGM and hence, the Route map, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not 

annexed to this Notice. 

III. Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose 

of quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

IV. Corporate shareholders/institutional shareholders intending to send their authorized 

representative(s) to attend and vote at the 30th AGM are requested to send from their 

registered e-mail address, scan copy of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority Letter, 

etc. authorizing their representative(s) to vote, to the Scrutinizer on her e-mail ID at 

tanishasrivastava0591@gmail.com with a copy marked to cs@ishangroup.co.in. 

 

9. The Notice of AGM and Annual Report for financial year ended March 31, 2025, is being 

sent by electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 

Company/Depositories/RTA, unless a member has requested a physical copy of the same. 

Members may note that the Notice of AGM and Annual Report for financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 can be accessed at the Company’s website www.ishanglobal.com, website 

of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at 

www.nseindia.com and on the website of KFin Technologies Limited at the website 

address https://evoting.kfintech.com . 

 

10. As on the date of this Notice, all the shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. 

Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses, bank account details and 

mobile number are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants (“DP”) 

since the shares are held by them in electronic Form. 

  

11. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, there are no unclaimed 

dividend amounts pending for transfer. 

 

12. All the documents referred to in the Notice and explanatory statement will be available for 

electronic inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of this 

Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. September 26, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such 

documents can send an e-mail to cs@ishangroup.co.in. The Register of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and 

Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under 

Section 189 of the Act and all other documents referred in the Notice of AGM, will be 

available electronically for inspection by the Members during the AGM. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE E-AGM THROUGH 

VIDEO CONFERENCE (“VC”) / OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MODE (“OAVM”): 

 

i. Attending the e-AGM: Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using their remote e-voting login credentials and selecting 

the ‘Event’ for Company’s AGM. Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-

voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 

remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice. Further, Members can also use the OTP 

based login for logging into the e-voting system. 

 

ii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops with Google Chrome for better 

experience. 

 

iii. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

iv. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1,000 

members on first come first served (“FCFS”) basis. The facility for joining the AGM shall 

open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for AGM and will continue till the conclusion of 

the AGM. 

 

v. No restrictions on account of entry into e-AGM in respect of large Shareholders (Shareholders 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors (i.e. Statutory 

Auditors and Secretarial Auditors) etc. 

 

vi. Those Members who register themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express views/ask 

questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 

and time for each speaker depending upon the availability of time for the AGM. 

 

vii. Submission of Questions/queries prior to e-AGM: 

 

Members desiring any additional information with regard to Accounts/ Annual Reports or has any 

question or query are requested to write to the Company Secretary/ Director on the Company’s 

investor email-id i.e., cs@ishangroup.co.in at least 2 days before the date of the e-AGM, so as to 

enable the Management to keep the information ready. Please note that, member’s questions will 

be answered only if they continue to hold the shares as of cut-off date. 

 

Alternatively, shareholders holding shares as on cut-off date may also visit 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/ and click on the tab “Post Your Queries Here” to post their queries/ 

views/questions in the window provided, by mentioning their name, demat account number/folio  

 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/


 

number, email ID, mobile number. The window shall be activated during the remote e-voting 

period and shall be closed 24 hours before the time fixed for the e-AGM. 

 

viii. Speaker Registration before e-AGM: Shareholders who wish to register as speakers at the 

AGM are requested to visit https://emeetings.kfintech.com register themselves between 

September 23, 2025 (09:00 Hours IST) to September 24, 2025 (17:00 Hours IST). 

 

ix. Members who need technical assistance before or during the AGM, can contact KFintech at 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING: 

 

Procedure for remote e-voting: 

i. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 

read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in terms of 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09 December 2020 in 

relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed Entities, the Members are provided with the 

facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-Voting services provided by KFintech,  

on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-Voting are given herein 

below 

ii. However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09 

December 2020 on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has 

been enabled to all the individual demat account holders, by way of single login credential, 

through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the 

efficiency of the voting process. 

iii. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register 

again with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting process. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access 

e-Voting facility. 

iv. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut off date i.e. September 19, 2025. 

v. The remote e-Voting period commences from 09.00 Hours (IST) on September 23, 2025 to 

17.0 Hours (IST) on September 25, 2025. 

 

vi. Any person holding shares in demat/physical form and nonindividual shareholders, who 

acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 

Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by 

sending a request at evoting@Kfintech.com. 
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However, if he / she is already registered with KFintech for remote e-Voting then he /she can 

use his / her existing User ID and password for casting the vote. 

 

vii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares 

of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and 

holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below under “Login method 

for remote e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode.” 

 

viii. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained herein 

below: 

Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares 

in demat mode. 

 

Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical and 

non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

Step 3: Access to join virtual meetings(e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system to participate e- 
AGM and vote at the AGM. 

  

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 

 

Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode with 

NSDL 

1. User already registered for IDeAS facility: 

I. Visit URL:  https://eservices.nsdl.com/  

II. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under ‘IDeAS’ 

section. 

III. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful 

authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting” 

IV. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting the vote during 

the remote e-Voting period. 

 

2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services 

I. To register click on link: https://eservices.nsdl.com/  

II.Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

III. Proceed with completing the required fields. 

IV. Follow steps given in point no.1 

 

3. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL 

I. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/  

II.Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 

III. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e., your 

sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and 

a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

IV. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to select the name 

of the Company and the e-Voting Service Provider name, i.e., KFintech. 

V. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting 

page for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode with 

CDSL 

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest 

I. Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login      

or URL: www.cdslindia.com  

II. Click on New System Myeasi 

III. Login with your registered user id and password. 

IV. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP 

i.e., KFintech e-Voting portal. 

V. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote. 

 

2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest 

I.Option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

II. Proceed with completing the required fields. 

III. Follow the steps given in point 1 

 

3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL 

I. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 

II. Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No. 

III. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the demat Account. 

IV. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 

respective ESP, i.e., KFintech where the e-Voting is in progress. 

 

Individual 

Shareholder 

login through 

their 

demat accounts 

/ 

Website of 

Depository 

Participant 

I. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your DP registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

II. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository 

site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 

III. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service 

provider – KFintech and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

KFintech for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period without 

any further authentication. 

 
  

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot 

user ID and Forgot Password option available at respective websites. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities 

in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 

- 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

 

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below: 

Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode or shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants (s), will 

receive an email from KFintech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), 

USER ID and password. They will have to follow the following process: 

 

i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ 

 

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will 

be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) xxxx, followed by folio number. In case of Demat account, 

User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are already registered with KFintech 

for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting the vote. (“All 

securities of the Company is in demat form”) 

 

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”. 

 

iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change 

your password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one 

upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$, 

etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details 

like mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret question and 

answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly 

recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

v. You need to login again with the new credentials. 

 

vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVENT” i.e., ‘Ishan International 

Limited -Annual General Meeting” and click on “Submit”. 

 

vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on 

the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number 

in “FOR” and partially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/ AGAINST” taken together 

shall not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the 

option ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be 

treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under either head. 

 

viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for 

each folio/ demat accounts. 

 

ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast 

your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained. 

 

 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/


 

 

x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”. 

 

xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once 

you have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the 

voting period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s). 

 

xii. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required 

to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc., 

authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to cast 

its vote through remote e-voting. Together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly 

authorised representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at email id tanishasrivastava0591@gmail.com 

with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.com or cs@ishangroup.co.in. The scanned image of 

the above-mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Ishan International Limited” 

 

Details on Step 3 are mentioned below: 

Instructions for all the shareholders, including Individual, other than Individual and Physical, for 

attending the AGM of the Company through VC/ OAVM and e-Voting during the meeting. 

 

i. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM platform 

provided by KFintech. Members may access the same at https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by 

using the e-voting login credentials provided in the email received from the 

Company/KFintech. After logging in, click on the Video Conference tab and select the EVENT 

of the Company. Click on the video symbol and accept the meeting etiquettes to join the 

meeting. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting 

or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e- 

Voting instructions mentioned above. 

 

ii. Facility for joining AGM though VC/ OAVM shall open at least 15 minutes before the 

commencement of the Meeting. 

 

iii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/ Desktops with Google Chrome 
(preferred browser), Safari, Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla Firefox 22. 

 

iv. Members will be required to grant access to the webcam to enable VC / OAVM. Further, 

Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is 

therefore recommended to use Stable Wi- Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 

aforesaid glitches. 

 

v. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings 

of the AGM, Members are encouraged to express their views / send their queries in advance 

mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number and email id. 

 

vi. The Members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast 

their vote through e-voting system available during the AGM. E-voting during the AGM is 

mailto:authorisedrepresentative(s)%2CtotheScrutinizeratemailidtanishasrivastava0591@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@kfintech.com
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integrated with the VC / OAVM platform. The Members may click on the voting icon displayed 

on the screen to cast their votes. 

vii. A Member can opt for only a single mode of voting i.e., through Remote e-voting or voting at 

the AGM. If a Member cast votes by both modes, then voting done through Remote e-voting 

shall prevail and vote at the AGM shall be treated as invalid. 

 

viii. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be available for at least 1000 members 

on first come first served basis. 

 

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

I. Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak during the meeting may register 

themselves as speakers for the AGM to express their views. They can visit 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ and login through the user id and password provided in the mail 

received from Kfintech. On successful login, select ‘Speaker Registration’ which will be open 

from September 22, 2025 (09.00 Hours IST) to September 24, 2025 (17.00 Hours IST). Members 

shall be provided a ‘queue number’ before the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict 

the speakers at the AGM to only those Members who have registered themselves, depending on 

the availability of time for the AGM. 

 

II. Post your Question: The Members who wish to post their questions prior to the meeting can 

do the same by visiting https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ . Please login through the user id and 

password provided in the mail received from Kfintech. On successful login, select ‘Post Your 

Question’ option which will be open from September 22, 2025 (09.00 Hours IST) to September 

24, 2025 (17.00 Hours IST). 
 

III. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, Members may 

refer to  the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at 

the download section of https://evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact 

evoting@kfintech.com/ einward.ris@kfintech.com or call KFintech’s toll free No. 1-800-309-

4001 for any further clarifications. 

IV. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as 

on September 19, 2025 (End of Day), being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions 

set forth in this Notice. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this 

Notice for information purposes only. Once the vote on a resolution(s) is cast by the Member, the 

Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 

V. In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on 

or before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner 

as mentioned below: 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
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If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID Client 

ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/, the member may click “Forgot 

Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID, Client ID and PAN to generate a password. 

 

i. Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the AGM are 

requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or write to them at 

evoting@kfintech.com/ einward.ris@kfintech.com. 

 

VI. The results of the electronic voting shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges after the AGM. 

The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall also be placed on the website of the Company. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 

1. The Company’s equity shares are Listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange 

Plaza, Floor 5, Plot No. C/1, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India and the 

Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchanges for the year 2024-2025. 

 

2. Members are requested to send all communication relating to shares to the Company’s Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent at KFIN Technologies Limited (Unit: Ishan International Limited), 

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 

500032, Telangana State, India. 

 

3. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Register of Contracts 

maintained under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder are available 

for inspection at the registered office of the Company. 

 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

 

i. Members holding shares either in demat or physical mode who are in receipt of Notice, may 

cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

ii. Members opting for e-voting, for which the USER ID and initial password are provided in a 

separate sheet. Please follow steps under heading ‘INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING’ above 

to vote through e-voting platform. 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/
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iii. The e-voting period commences from 9.00 A.M. (IST) on September 23, 2025 to 5.00 P.M. 

(IST) on September 25, 2025. During this period, the members of the Company, holding 

shares in demat, as on the cut-off date of September 19, 2025 may cast their vote 

electronically. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not 

be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 

iv. The Company has appointed M/s. Tanisha Srivastava & Associates, Company Secretary in 

Practice represented by Ms. Tanisha Srivastava, Practising Company Secretary (Membership 

No. A49947 and COP No. 20146) as the Scrutiniser to conduct the voting process (e-voting and 

poll) in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

v. The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding 2 working days from the conclusion of the 

Annual General Meeting unlock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses, not in 

the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report containing the details with 

respect to votes cast in favour, against, neutral/ abstained, shall submit the Report to the 

Chairman of the Company. 

 

vi. Subject to the receipt of sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed at the 30th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Friday, September 26, 

2025, the results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's 

website https://www.ishanglobal.com/ and on the website of KFintech, 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/, within 2 working days of conclusion of the Annual General 

Meeting. 
 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 

https://www.ishanglobal.com/
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“ANNEXURE-I” to the Notice 

 

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Forthcoming 30th Annual General 

Meeting 

Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings- 

2 as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a statement containing the requisite 

details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment is given below: 

 

Particulars Name of the Director 

Neelam Gupta 

DIN 06823562 

Date of birth 06/08/1981 

Age 44 

Qualification M.Com from C.S.J.M. Kanpur University, P.G.D.C.A 

from Board of Technical Education, Lucknow and MBA 
from Symbiosis, Pune. 

Experience and Expertise in 

specific functional area and 

Recognitions 

Mrs Neelam Gupta enriches the company with 20 years of 

experience in the filed of Finance & Project Management. 

She has helped in achieving and furthering larger goals the 

company over the years and in building a strong team 

across  cultures  at  Ishan’s  Foreign  Offices  and 

Representatives located in different parts of the world. 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and other Key 

Managerial  Personnel  of  the 
Company 

N.A. 

Nature of appointment 
(appointment / re-appointment) 

Re-appointment 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment / re-appointment 

Re-appointment as Director subject to the approval of 
members 

Remuneration last drawn by such 

Person, if applicable and 
remuneration sought to be paid 

Rs. 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

15/03/2018 

Shareholding in the company 

including shareholding as a 

beneficial owner 

228000 

The number of Meetings of the 
Board attended during the year 

Seven (7) 



 

Other Directorship Details Pink Panther Productions Private Limited 
Divine Lotus Agrocart Private Limited 

 Divineagro Farms Producer Company Limited 

Name of listed entities in which 

person also holds the directorship 

and   membership   of   the 

Committees/ chairmanship of 

Committees of other Boards 

N.A. 

 

 

“ANNEXURE-II” to the Notice 

 

Particulars Name of the Director 

Salil Srivastava 

DIN 11270865 

Date of birth 11/09/1985 

Age 40 

Qualification Mr. Srivastava holds a Master’s degree in Mass 
Communication from GJSTU, Hisar, a Post Graduate 
Programme in Journalism from TV Today Media Institute 
(2006), and a Bachelor of Science from Rohilkhand 
University (2005). 

Experience and Expertise in 

specific functional area and 

Recognitions 

Mr. Salil Srivastava, based in Greater Noida, is a seasoned 
media professional with over 15 years of extensive 
experience in leading television networks, specializing in 
broadcast journalism, content strategy, and editorial 
management. He has successfully led high-impact news 
programming, breaking news coverage, and live 
production in reputed media houses such as Network18 
Media & Investments Ltd., India News, and Aaj Tak (TV 
Today Network). 
 
At Network18 Media & Investments Ltd., where he 
currently serves as Associate Executive Producer (since 
October 2018), Mr. Srivastava has been instrumental in 
overseeing editorial content, managing live programming, 
and handling YouTube operations, in addition to 
coordinating with editorial teams for impactful news 
delivery. His prior leadership roles at India News (2013–
2018) and Aaj Tak (2006–2013) enriched his expertise in 
newsroom operations, prime-time production, exclusive 
news coverage, and audience engagement. 
 
Recognized for his editorial acumen, team leadership, and 
strategic decision-making, Mr. Srivastava brings valuable 
industry insights and governance experience, aligning with 



 

the principles of independence, transparency, and 
corporate responsibility. His appointment as an Non-
Executive Independent Director is expected to strengthen 
‘Ishan International Limited’s governance framework 
while contributing to its vision of sustainable growth and 
stakeholder value creation. 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and other Key 

Managerial  Personnel  of  the 
Company 

N.A. 

Nature of appointment 
(appointment / re-appointment) 

Appointment  

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment / re-appointment 

Appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director for a 
period of 5 financial years  

Remuneration last drawn by such 
Person, if applicable and 
remuneration sought to be paid 

Nil 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

02/09/2025 

Shareholding in the company 

including shareholding as a 

beneficial owner 

Nil 

The number of Meetings of the 
Board attended during the year 

Nil 

Other Directorship Details Nil 
 

Affirmation that the appointee 
Director is not debarred from 
holding the office by virtue of any 
SEBI Order or any other authority 

Mr. Salil Srivastava is not debarred from holding the office 
by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other authority. 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 



 

 

BOARD'S REPORT 

 

Dear Member(s), 

The Board of Directors of your Company takes pleasure in presenting the Thirtieth (30th) Board’s 

Report of Ishan International Limited (the “Company”), on the business and operations of the 

Company together with Audited Standalone Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report thereon 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

This Board’s report states compliance of the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act”), 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended and other laws applicable to the Company. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance of the Company for the current financial year 2024-25 as compared to 

previous financial year 2023-24 is summarized as follows: 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 7,265.34 3,012.86 

Other Income 89.50 138.93 

Total Revenue 7,354.83 3,151.79 

Material cost 6,738.68 2,261.62 

Changes in inventories of work- 
in-progress & Raw Materials 

(1.62) (23.57) 

Employee benefits expense 208.35 218.89 

Finance Cost 54.82 59.32 

Depreciation  and  amortization 
Expenses 

15.38 16.20 

Other Expenses 310.37 534.92 

Total Expenses 7,325.98 3,067.37 

Profit before exceptional and 
extraordinary items and tax 

28.85 84.43 

Less: Extraordinary Items - - 

Profit before tax 28.85 84.43 

Less: Tax Expenses   

Current Tax 5.92 50.10 

Deferred Tax Liabilities / Assets 1.44 (21.68) 

Earlier Year Tax Expenses/ 
(Income) 

- (1.23) 

Profit /(Loss) for the period 
from continuing operations 

21.49 57.23 

Other Comprehensive Income 1.66 4.06 



 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period 23.16 61.29 

Earnings per Equity Share   

Basic 0.01 0.03 

Diluted 0.01 0.03 

 

THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

During the financial year under, revenue from operations stood at Rs. 7,265.34 Lakhs, more than 

double as compared of Rs. 3,012.86 Lakhs in the previous financial year. With the increase of 

revenue from operations, total expenses also saw a significant rise, reaching to Rs. 7,325.98 Lakhs 

as compared from Rs. 3,067.37 Lakhs in the previous financial year. Despite the strong growth in 

operational performance, the profits after tax declined notably to Rs. 23.16 Lakhs as compared 

from Rs. 61.29 Lakhs in the previous financial year. 

 

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

The Company is engaged in the business of contracting of machinery and engineering projects and 

there is no change in the nature of business during the financial year under review. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS EFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF 

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

No material changes or commitments effecting the financial position of the Company has occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements pertains and up to the date 

of this report. 

DIVIDEND 

Considering the modest profits and the Company’s ongoing need for funds to support business 

growth and expansion, the Board of Directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial 

year under review. This decision reflects the management’s strategic intent to reinvest the 

Company’s earnings to support its long-term objectives, reinforce its market position and increase 

of shareholders value. 

 

RESERVES 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors did not recommended transfer of 

any amount of profit to any reserves. Hence, the amount of profits has been carried forward to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. A detailed note on the same is provided in Note No. 14 of the Notes 

to Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements, forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS HOLDING, 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE 

YEAR 



 

 

During the financial year under review, no Company became or ceased as holding, subsidiary, 

joint venture and associate companies of the Company. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3), 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copy of the Annual Return of 

the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in Form MGT-7 can be accessed on 

the Company’s website at the link www.ishanglobal.com. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND NUMBER OF BOARD 

MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Company has constituted its Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules, including any amendments thereof. 

 

The Board has played a crucial role in strategic decision-making, driving the Company towards 
growth and reinforcing strong corporate governance. 

 

MEETINGS 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met 7 (Seven) times as on April 06, 

2024, July 04, 2024, August 30, 2024, November 01, 2024, November 14, 2024, March 07, 2025 

and March 15, 2025. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

S. 

No. 

Dates of Board 

Meetings 

Total No. of 

Directors as on 

the Date of 

Meeting 

No. of Directors 

attended the 

Meeting 

% Of Attendance 

1 April 06, 2024 5 4 80% 

2 July 04, 2024 5 4 80% 

3 August 30, 2024 5 4 80% 

4 November 01, 2024 5 4 80% 

5 November 14, 2024 5 4 80% 

6 March 07, 2025 5 5 100% 

7 March 15, 2025 5 4 80% 

http://www.ishanglobal.com/


 

 

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER 

REVIEW TO TILL DATE 

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Board of 

Directors. 

However, after the closure of the financial year, the followings changes were occurred: 

1. Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi (DIN: 01603093), Independent Director of the Company, has 

tendered his resignation from the directorship due to his pre-occupation w.e.f. June 27, 

2025. 

2. Based on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Salil 

Srivastava (DIN-11270865), has been proposed for appointment as Additional Non- 

Executive Independent Director of the Company in the Board Meeting held on September 

02, 2025 and his appointment is being propose before the members at ensuing 30th Annual 

General Meeting as Non-Executive Independent Director for a period of 5 (five) financial 

years. 

 

DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION AND SUBSEQUENT RE- 

APPOINTMENT 

Pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Articles of 

Association of the Company, Ms. Neelam Gupta, Director & CFO of the Company, retires by 

rotation at the ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re- 

appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company, recommends her re-appointment for 

consideration by the members of the Company at the ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting. 

A brief profile, expertise and other details as required to be disclosed pursuant to Regulation 36 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-2 (Secretarial 

Standards on General Meetings) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries is annexed to the 

notice of ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting. 

 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB 

SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The Company has, inter alia, received the declaration from all the Independent Directors in which 

they confirmed that they met the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder and complied with the code of 

Independent Directors prescribed under Schedule IV to the Act. The Directors have further 

confirmed that they are not debarred from holding the office of director under any SEBI order or 

under the order of any such authority. 



 

In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience, 

expertise and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge their duties with an objective 

independent judgment, free from any external influence. 

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND NUMBER OF 

MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Board Committees are integral to the Company's governance system and are formed to address 

specific areas/activities as required by relevant regulations. These Committees act as authorized 

agents of the Board, adhering to their terms of reference that outline their purpose, objectives, and 

responsibilities. Accordingly, the Company has constituted 3 Board Committees with adequate 

delegation of power to focus on issues and ensure expedient resolution of matters and for providing 

recommendation to the Board. 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretaries of the Committees. The committees 

meet often as per the statutory requirements. 

During the financial year under review, all the recommendations / suggestions were accepted by 

the Board. 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

COMPOSITION 

 

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee, in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules, including any amendments 

thereof. During the financial year, the composition of Audit Committee was as follows: 
 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of Committee member Designation Category 

1 Mr. Vipin Ganpatrao Goje Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2 Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

3 Mr. Nadish Satyaprakash Bhatia Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

 

There was no change in the composition of Audit Committee during the year. However, after the 

financial year, due to resignation of Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi (DIN: 01603093), Independent Director 

and member of the committee and appointment of Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN-11270865), the 

composition of the Committee has been changed. 



 

MEETINGS 

 

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee members met 5 (Five) times as on 

July 04, 2024, November 01, 2024, November 14, 2024, March 07, 2025 and March 15, 2025. 

 

ATTENDANCE 
 

 

S. 

No. 

Dates of Committee 

Meetings 

Total No. of 

Directors on 

the  Date  of 
Meeting 

No. of 

Directors 

attended the 
Meeting 

% Of Attendance 

1 July 04, 2024 3 2 66.67% 

2 November 01, 2024 3 2 66.67% 

3 November 14, 2024 3 2 66.67% 

4 March 07, 2025 3 2 66.67% 

5 March 15, 2025 3 2 66.67% 

 

 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

COMPOSITION 

The Company has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules, including any 

amendments thereof. The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the 

financial year under review was as follows: 

 

S. 
No. 

Name of Committee member Designation Category 

1 Mr. Nadish Satyaprakash Bhatia Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2 Mr. Vipin Ganpatrao Goje Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

3 Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi Member Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

 

There was no change in the composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. However, 

after the financial year, due to resignation of Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi (DIN: 01603093), Independent 

Director and member of the committee and appointment of Mr. Salil Srivastava (DIN-11270865), 

the composition of the Committee has been changed. 

MEETINGS 



 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met one (1) time as on March 07, 2025. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

S. 

No. 

Date of Committee 

Meetings 

Total No. of 

Directors as 

on the Date 

of the 

Meeting 

No. of Directors 

attended the 

Meeting 

% Of Attendance 

1 March 07, 2025 3 2 66.67% 

 

 

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

COMPOSITION 

The Company has duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee, in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules, including any 

amendments thereof. The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee for the financial 

year under review was as follows: 
 

 

S. No. Name of Committee member Designation Category 

1 Mr. Nadish Satyaprakash Bhatia Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 Mr. Vipin Ganpatrao Goje Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

3 Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

4 Neelam Gupta Member Executive Director 

 

There was no change in the composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee. However, after 

the financial year, due to resignation of Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi (DIN: 01603093), Independent 

Director and member of the committee composition of the Committee has been changed. 

MEETINGS 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met one (1) time as on March 07, 2025. 



 

ATTENDANCE 

 

S. 

No. 

Date of Committee 

Meeting 

Total No. of 

Directors as 

on the Date 

of the 

Meeting 

No. of Directors 

attended the 

Meeting 

% Of Attendance 

1 March 07, 2025 4 3 75% 

 

CHANGE IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel. 

However, after the financial year, Ms. Divya, Company Secretary & Compliance Office has 

resigned w.e.f. August 11, 2025. 

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

AT THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 

At the end of the financial year under review, the composition of Board of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel was as follows: 
 

 

Mr. Shantanu Srivastava (DIN: 00022662) Chairman, Managing Director & 
CEO 

Mrs. Neelam Gupta (DIN: 06823562) Director & CFO 

Mr. Vipin Ganpatrao Goje (DIN: 09607934) Independent Director 

Mr. Nadish Satyaprakash Bhatia (DIN: 03564903) Independent Director 

Mr. Mahesh Bhupathi (DIN: 01603093) Independent Director 

Ms. Divya (M. No. A68457) Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer 

 

TERMS & CONDITIONS FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has in place Nomination and Remuneration Policy applicable to Directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees. The policy aims to ensure that the persons appointed 

at such positions possesses requisite qualification, experience, expertise and the remuneration 

shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them and to run the Company 

successfully and relation of remuneration of performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks. Detailed policy of the Company on the terms & conditions for 

appointment and remuneration of Independent Directors has been placed at the website of the 

Company and can be accessed at www.ishanglobal.com. 

http://www.ishanglobal.com/


 

 

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Independent Director shall in opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant 

expertise and experience in the fields of finance, Marketing, Accounts, Taxation, law, governance 

and general management, so as to have a diverse Board. 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for evaluation of the 

performance of the Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole. Performance 

evaluation of the directors undertaken annually. 

Performance Evaluation of each director was carried out by the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on March 07, 2025. 

Further, the performance evaluation of the Chairman, the Non-Independent Directors and Board 

as a whole was also carried out by the Independent Directors at a separately convened meeting 

held on March 28, 2025. 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprised the following key 

parameters: 

i. Attendance in Board Meetings 

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations 

iii. Strategic perspective or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and 

performance 

iv. Effective communication with the management 

v. Providing of prospective and feedbacks 

vi. Commitment towards shareholders and other stakeholders 

The Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process and its outcomes. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL 

During the financial year under review, the Authorized Share Capital stands Rs. 23,00,00,000 

(Rupees Twenty-Three Crores only), divided into 23,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Three Crores) 

Equity Shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each. 

There was no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company. 

PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 

During the financial year under review, the Paid-Up Share Capital stands Rs. 72,078,430 (Rupees 

Seven Crores Twenty Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty only) divided into 

72,078,430 (Rupees Seven Crores Twenty Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Four Hundred and 

Thirty) Equity Shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each. 



 

 

There was no change in the Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company. 

 

SHARES 

A. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES 

 

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year under 

review. 

 

B. SWEAT EQUITY 

 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year under 

review. 

 

C. BONUS ISSUE 

 

The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the financial year under review. 

 

D. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 

 

The Company has not provided any Employees Stock Option Scheme to the Employees. 

 

E. RIGHT ISSUE 

 

The Company has not issued any right issue of shares during the year under review. 

 

F. PRIVATE PLACEMENT/ PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT 

 

During the financial year under review, the Company hasn’t issued any shares under 

Private Placement/ Preferential Allotment. 

 

 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board hereby 

submits its responsibility Statement: — 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 

of the company for that period; 



 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

AUDIT AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. Hiren Buch Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 

Registration No: 116131W) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 28th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 21, 2023, for a term of 5 (Five) 

consecutive years, i.e., to hold office from the conclusion of the 28th Annual General Meeting held 

in 2023 till the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2028. 

The Auditors’ Report of Statutory Auditors on the Standalone Financial Statements for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, forms the part of Annual Report. 

The Auditors’ Report read together with Annexures does not contain any qualifications, 

reservations and adverse remarks. 

INTERNAL AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors 

of the Company at their meeting held on July 04, 2024 re-appointed M/s. Sunil K. Khanna & Co. 

(Firm Registration No. 000310N) as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024- 

25. 

The Internal Audit Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualifications, reservations 

adverse remarks or disclaimers. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, on the recommendation 

of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on July 04, 

2024 re-appointed M/s Tanisha Srivastava & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice (M. No. 

49947 and COP No. 20146) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024- 

25. 



 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 received from Secretarial 

Auditor is annexed as Annexure-I to this Report and also forms the part of Annual Report. The 

Secretarial Auditor Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualifications, reservations 

adverse remarks or disclaimers. 

Further, the Board of directors at their meeting held on May 22, 2025, considered and approved 

the appointment of M/s Tanisha Srivastava & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice (M. No. 

49947 and COP No. 20146) as secretarial auditor, for a period of 5 financial years, commencing 

from financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30, subject to the approval of members at ensuing 30th Annual 

General Meeting. 

COST AUDITORS 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 

Audit) Rules, 2014, the activity of our Company falls under Non-regulated sectors and hence, cost 

audit was not applicable to the Company for the financial year under review. 

Hence, maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 

2013 was also not applicable on the Company. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is appended to this Report as Annexure-II. 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB- 

SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE 

WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

During the financial year under review, there was no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors 

pursuant to sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the central government 

or Audit Committee or the Board against any officers and employees of the Company, therefore 

nothing is to report by the Board under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 

186 

The Company has given loan, guarantee and made investment within the compliance of the 

provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The notes with its reference are given in 

Notes to Agenda to the Annual Standalone Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2025. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 



 

There are no contracts or arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties as referred 

to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence sub-section (1) of Section 

188 was not applicable and consequently Form AOC-2 is not required to be furnished. 

All related party transactions that not are covered under sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 were entered into by the Company on arm’s length basis and were in the 

ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions with 

the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company. 

During the financial year under review, the Company took loan from its director for amounting to 

Rs. 295 Lakhs and the amount of Rs. 50.55 Lakhs stood outstanding at the end of the financial 

year. 

The details of the related party transactions provided in Note No. 33 of Notes to the accounts of 

the Annual Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

DETIALS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED ON 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2013 was not applicable to the Company. Therefore, no policy has been 

developed and implemented on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives by the Company. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

The Company has a robust Risk Management System designed to identify and mitigate risks 

effectively. For all risk categories-high, medium or low, we have established detailed Action 

Plans. Over the years, we have developed a deep understanding of our operating and financial 

risks and work closely with all departments to identify, categorize, and address these risks. Our 

proactive risk management approach enables us to conduct business efficiently and uphold a 

world-class Quality Management System. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange 

Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, read with Rule 8(3) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished as under: 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

(i) The steps taken or impact on 

conservation of energy. 

The Company operates in the service sector with no 

manufacturing activities. However, continuous efforts 

are made to conserve energy in office operations through 
measures such as: 



 

  
*Usage of energy efficient LED lighting. 

*Regular maintenance of air-conditioning and electrical 

systems to ensure energy efficiency. 

(ii) The Steps taken by the 

Company for utilizing 

alternate sources of energy. 

Considering the nature and scale of operations, there is 

limited scope for usage of alternative energy sources. Our 

Company is efficiently utilizing the available energy 
resources. 

(iii) The capital investment 

on energy conservation 
equipment’s. 

No capital investment was required or incurred during 

the year on energy conservation equipment’s. 

 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption Nil 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement cost reduction product 
development or import substitution 

Nil 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) 

Nil 

 (a) the details of technology imported  

 (b) the year of import  

 (c) whether the technology been fully absorbed  

 (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, 
and the reasons thereof 

 

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development Nil 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial period ended March 31, 2025 is 

as follows: 

 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Earnings in Foreign Currency 1,876.60 1,611.98 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency 202.38 205.70 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, during the financial year, within the 

meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014, and no amount of principal or interest on deposits from the public was 

outstanding at the beginning and end of financial year 2025. 



 

However, the Company has accepted deposits covered under Rule 2(1)(c) of Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits), 2014 as a loan/ facility from Scheduled Banks defined by Reserve 

Bank of India and the disclosure of the same is provided in the notes to annual audited 

standalone financial statements forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN 

STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals impacting 

the going concern status or the Company's operations in the future. 

 

CONRPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the SME platform (NSE-emerge) of NSE Limited. 

Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified in Regulation 17 to 

27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub regulations (2) of regulation 46 and par as C, D and E of Schedule 

V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 shall not apply. 

Hence, Corporate Governance Report and compliance certificate regarding compliance of 

conditions of corporate governance does not form a part of this Board Report, though we are 

committed for the best corporate governance practices. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements. During the financial year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable 

material weakness in the design or operations was observed. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards on the Meetings of the Board 

of Directors (SS-1) and general meetings (SS-2) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India “ICSI” and approved by Central Government under Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 

2013. The Directors has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such system was adequate and operating effectively. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements 

of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 and has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 

Committee under the Act. 



 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. 

To this end, we have implemented rigorous safety protocols and standards to minimize risk and 

ensure the health and safety of our workforce. We continually review and update our practices to 

adhere to the highest industry standards and regulatory requirements. 

Your directors further state that during the financial year under review, there was no cases filed 

pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. A report on the same has been filed with the District Officer Noida via mail 

and hard copy. 

WHISTLE BLOWER/ VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy in accordance 

with provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 to provide a formal mechanism to 

its Directors and Employees of the Company for reporting any unethical behavior, breach of any 

statute, actual or suspected fraud that results in financial loss or loss of reputation, leakage of 

information in the nature of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI), misuse of office, 

suspected / actual fraud and criminal offences. 

Directors and Employees of the Company were regularly updated about the policies of the 

Company.  

 

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI PIT 

Regulations”), the Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor 

and report trading by Insiders for Prevention of Insider Trading for its Designated Persons, their 

immediate relatives and Insiders. 

The code prohibits dealing the securities of the Company by designated persons, their immediate 

relatives and insiders while they are in possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

during the period of closing of trading window. 

The Board of Directors are taking adequate steps to keep the insiders, designated persons and 

employees consistently updated with the code. The Board also confirmed compliance with the 

code during the financial year under review. 

 

STATEMENT ON DEVIATION AND VARIATION OF FUNDS 

 

During the financial year under year, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on November 

01, 2024, considered and approved the deviation of Initial Public Offer “IPO” Proceeds for 

amounting to Rs. 243.40 lakhs (Rupees Two Hundred Forty-Three and Forty Lakhs only), 

originally allocated to "General Corporate Expenses" towards the “Working Capital” requirements 



 

of the Company, subject to the approval of the members of the Company at ensuing Extraordinary 

General Meeting. 

 

Further, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on November 14, 2024, considered and 

approved the variation of Initial Public Offer “IPO” Proceeds by carry forward the unutilized 

amount of Rs. 333.25/- lakhs (Rupees Three Hundred Thirty-Three and Point Twenty-Five Lakhs 

only) from the financial year ended March 31, 2024, to the financial year ending March 31, 2025, 

in alignment with the Company’s strategic objectives and in the best interest of the shareholders. 

This non-adherence come to the knowledge of the Board, and upon being noticed, the Company 

took the requisite approvals. The members of the Company considered and approved the 

following agendas in their Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 28, 2024. 

 

As of March 31, 2025, the entire amount of IPO funds has been utilized and the Company has 

complained and submitted all relevant declarations. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Disclosure under the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

a) The percentage increase in the remuneration of each director: Nil. 

 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 8- 

10% approx. 

 

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025: 11. 

 

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 

in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 

exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Not applicable 

 

e) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: Yes 

 

f) Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 with reference to remuneration of employees in excess of the limits 

prescribed: None of the employees were in receipt of remuneration above 8 lakh 50 thousand 

per month or Rs. One crore Two lakhs per annum and above. 



 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND 

PROTECTION FUND 

 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply, as there was no 

dividend declared and paid last year. 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS 

During the financial year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending 

in the name of the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE 

TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH 

THE REASONS THEREOF 

The Company has never made any one-time settlement against the loans obtained from Banks and 

Financial Institution and hence this clause is not applicable. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your directors thank the shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees, bankers and all other 

stakeholders for their wholehearted support during the financial year and look forward to their 

continued support in the years ahead. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-1 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

 

1. SNAPSHOT 

 

The Company was originally incorporated as Ishan International Private Limited on May 29, 1995 

under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of 

Companies, New Delhi. Subsequently the name of the company was changed to “Ishan 

International Limited” under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a special resolution passed by 

our shareholders at the EGM held on January 11, 2022 and had obtained fresh certificate of 

incorporation on January 17, 2022 issued by the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi. The CIN of 

the Company is L74899DL1995PLC069144. 

 

Ishan is an ISO 9001: 2015 certified Company, GoI certified Star Export House and a diversified 

heavy engineering company with an history of 29+ years of experience in marketing/ selling heavy 

engineering equipment in international markets. It is engaged in marketing/ selling projects that 

focus on supplying machines, erection/installation, commissioning and operational training for 

sugar plants, hydro power plants and pollution control systems. It also provides high end 

engineering services and solutions for all types of activities in Hydro Power, Sugar & Pollution 

Control Systems. 

 

2. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW – INDIAN ENGINEERING SECTOR 

 

According to the India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF), India’s capital goods and engineering 

industry forms a strong backbone for multiple sectors such as engineering, construction, 

infrastructure, and consumer goods. 

 

 The engineering sector is the largest industrial segment in India, accounting for 27% of 

total factories and 63% of foreign collaborations. 

 Demand is driven by capacity expansion in infrastructure, power, mining, oil & gas, 

refineries, steel, automobiles, and consumer durables. 

 India enjoys a competitive advantage due to low manufacturing costs, technology 

innovation, and skilled workforce. 

 The sector has witnessed sustained growth, supported by government initiatives, 100% FDI 

allowance, and increased focus on exports. 



 

 

 

Key Statistics (IBEF): 

 

 FDI inflows into mechanical & engineering industries: US$ 4.50 billion (Apr 2000 – Mar 

2024). 

 Engineering contributes 25% of India’s total merchandise exports. 

 Exports stood at US$ 107.04 billion in FY23 and US$ 109.32 billion in FY24, reflecting 

2.1% YoY growth. 

 In April 2024, exports of engineering goods reached US$ 8.67 billion. 

 Major export markets include US (US$ 17.63 billion in FY24), ASEAN, Europe, and 

UAE. 

 India’s engineering exports are projected to reach US$ 200 billion by 2030. 
 

CII Insights – Growth Projections 

 

The Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) projects significant growth across engineering sub- 

sectors: 

 Electronics Manufacturing – Potential to create 2.8 lakh jobs by 2026; enhance GDP 

and reduce import dependency. 

 Electrical Equipment Market – Expected to rise from US$ 52.98 billion (2022) to US$ 

125 billion by 2027. 

 Construction Equipment – Estimated 15% CAGR growth over the next five years. 

 Engineering Goods Exports – Estimated at US$ 109.32 billion in FY24, reflecting stable 

growth. 

 PCBA Segment – Anticipated to grow 30% CAGR, creating demand of US$ 87.46 billion 

by 2030. 
 

Global Engineering Industry Outlook 

 

 The global engineering services market was valued at US$ 707 billion in 2022, projected 

to cross US$ 1 trillion by 2032. 

 The product engineering services market was US$ 1,187.82 billion in 2023, expected to 

reach US$ 2,642.90 billion by 2032. 

 Siemens, with a market cap of US$ 127 billion and presence in 190 countries, remains 

the global leader. 

 Key sectors: civil, electrical, mechanical, structural, water systems, and energy 

production. 

 Growing emphasis on Renewable Energy & Pollution Control ensures continuous global 

demand. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

Ishan’s Strategic Positioning & Initiatives 

 

Ishan identified the potential of Renewable Energy and Pollution Control equipment exports 

nearly two decades ago. 

 Since 2005, Ishan has successfully promoted over 40 Hydro Power Projects (1 MW – 60 

MW) across ASEAN countries, establishing a strong presence in Vietnam and Southeast 

Asia. 

 The Company has actively contributed to India’s renewable energy mission under 

Government-led initiatives. 
 

 

Key Projects & Initiatives (FY 2025): 

 

 Export of small Hydro Power equipment to ASEAN countries, leveraging India’s low- 

cost, high-quality manufacturing base. 

 Domestic focus under KUSUM Yojna – Currently installing solar-powered agricultural 

pumps in Maharashtra, with plans to replicate in Madhya Pradesh and other states. 

 Strengthening global presence in pollution control and clean energy technologies, 

aligned with climate and sustainability goals. 

 

 

 

3. SWOT ANALYSIS 

 

 

Strength Weakness 

• KMP's experience, country New Suppliers of the Hydro 

Knowledge and relationships power plants, no projects 

to showcase in Vietnam, as of now 

 

• Strong marketing team in 

India and Overseas 

 

• Listed with the National 

Stock Exchange of India 

 

• Enhanced Brand value 



 

• Competent and effective 

back-end team at HO 

 

• Foreign offices managed by 

experienced and qualified 

staff 

 

• Star Export House certification 

by Government of India 

 

• Good relations with governments 

 

• Unparalled value addition  

toboth ends of the supply 

chain 

 

• Quality Management System under 

ISO 9001: 2015 (TUV Nord) 

 

• Strong support from bankers 

 

 

Opportunities Threats 

• Good potential for diversification Competition 

To other countries in our existing 

Industries 

 

• Good market potential in all our 

Industries 

 

• Good potential for going into 

manufacturing for backward 

integration 

 

• Easier access to manufactures 

 

• Easier access to buyers 

 

• Good market potential for 

diversification in our existing countries 



 

 

 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has a well defined, well analysed and well implemented Risk Management System. 

Risks are identified, analysed & graded. Specific Action Plans are defined for Medium & High 

Risks. This system is continually reviewed and updated by the Management based on the ‘Gap 

Analysis’ done as per the Quality Management System under ISO 9001:2015. 

 

5. ENVIRONMENT HEALTH & SAFETY 

 

We are committed to complying with applicable health, safety and environmental regulations and 

other requirements in our operations. Compliances are strictly met and monitored. 

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

 

The Company has sound and adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and 

nature of business. 

 

7. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

 

Human capital remains the Company's most essential asset. We prioritize creating a supportive 

and collaborative work environment where safety, occupational health, and environmental 

stewardship are central. The management is dedicated to integrate these values into all operational 

aspects. Consistent and periodic training enhances employee’s morale and confidence, ultimately 

driving the Company in achieving its these objectives. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Ishan International Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 02.09.2025 Shantanu Srivastava 

Place: Noida Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 



 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-3 

 
Form MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the financial year ended 31st March 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Ishan International Limited 

(CIN- L74899DL1995PLC069144) 

Regd. Office: 607, Chiranjiv Tower 43 Nehru place, 

South Delhi, Delhi, India, 110019 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by Ishan International Limited (“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 

Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 (“Audit Period”), 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained 
by the Company for Audit Period, according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (“Act”); 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and byelaws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under 
(“FEMA”) to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 

External Commercial Borrowings [The Company has not raised any External Commercial 

Borrowings during the Audit Period]; 

 
The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (“SEBI Act”): 



 

 
a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable during the audit period; 

c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; - 

 
e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the audit period; 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not 

Applicable during the audit period; Not Applicable during the audit period; 

h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 – Not 

Applicable during the audit period; 

i. Securities Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participations) Regulations,2018 

 
j. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable during the audit period 

 

Other applicable Acts: 

(a) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2Ol3 

As per explanation provided by the Management, no sector specific laws are applicable to the Company. 

I have relied on the presentation made by the Company and its Officers on systems and mechanism formed by 

the Company for compliance under other Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 

Further, I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board 

and general meetings. 

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, standards, etc., mentioned above and filed requisite forms and returns with in the due date except 

for an instance where they have filed beyond due date, with additional fee and the same were approved by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and complied with Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 
regulations, 2015 subject to the following observations: 



 

1. Delay in completion of bonus issue REG-295 (Company paid Penalty against Bonus Issue 

amounting to Rs.23,600 (20,000+3,600 GST) on 24.05.24. 

2. Notice for non-compliance with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015- non-compliance Regulation 33 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for quarter ended 31st March, 2024. (Company paid Penalty 

amounting to Rs.2,06,500 (1,75,000+31,500 GST) on 26.07.24. 

3. Notice for non-compliance with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015- non-compliance Regulation 

44(3) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for month ended 30th September, 2024.(Company paid 

Penalty amounting to Rs.11,800 (10,000 +1,800 GST) on 24.10.24. 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the Audit Period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (and by complying with prescribed procedure where the 
meetings are called with less than seven days’ notice), and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

the meeting. 

 

All decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 
During the audit period, due to technical glitch at Ministry of corporate affairs platform, in few instances 
the eForms have been filed with a delay, along with additional fees. 

 

For Tanisha Srivastava & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

(Tanisha Srivastava) 

ACS:49947 COP: 20146 

UDIN: A049947G001121622 

 

Date: 30/08/2025 

Place: New Delhi 



 

 

CONTINUATION SHEET 

Annexure-1 

To, 

The Members, 

Ishan International Limited 

(CIN- L74899DL1995PLC069144) 

Regd. Office: 607, Chiranjiv Tower 43 Nehru place, 

South Delhi, Delhi, India, 110019 

 
My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on a random test 

basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of 

the Company and have relied upon the Statutory Audit report made available by the Company to me, as on 

the date of signing this report. 

 

4. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
etc., is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on random test basis. 

 
5. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance nor a confirmation that the list is exhaustive. 

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Tanisha Srivastava & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 30/08/2025 (Tanisha Srivastava) 

Place: New Delhi  ACS:49947 COP: 20146 

UDIN: A049947G001121622 



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the members of 

ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

OPINION  

 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Ishan International Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 the Statement 

of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 

Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

including  a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after 

referred to as “the standalone Ind AS financial statements”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the aforesaid 

standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company, as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other 

comprehensive income, their cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 

of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code 

of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.  

 

Key Audit Matters  

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key 

audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

 

Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditors Response 

1. 

 

 

 

Recoverability and valuation of 

allowance for impairment of overdue 

trade receivables: 

The Company has old outstanding trade 

Our audit procedures included but were 

not limited to the following: 

 Obtained an understanding of the 

process adopted by the Company in 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

 

 

 

 

receivables of Rs. 562.74 lakhs for 

more than 365 days (‘overdue trade 

receivables’) as on March 31, 2025. 

The Company recognizes loss 

allowance of Rs. 109.44 Lakhs (Rs. 

317.98 Lakhs less amount of Rs. 

208.54 Lakhs withdrawn from General 

Reserve) for trade receivables at the 

expected credit loss ('ECL') as per the 

principles enunciated under Ind AS 109, 

Financial Instruments (‘Ind AS 109’). 

Assessment of the recoverability of 

trade receivables with the related ECL 

is inherently subjective and requires 

significant management judgement 

which includes repayment history and 

financial position of entities from whom 

these balances are recoverable, terms of 

underlying arrangements, overdue 

balances, market conditions etc. 

Considering the materiality of the 

amounts involved and significant 

degree of judgement and subjectivity 

involved in the estimates and 

assumptions used in determining the 

expected credit loss, we have 

considered this matter as a key audit 

matter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We draw your attention to Note no. 38 to 

the financial results, The Company is yet 

to complete the formalities of seeking 

estimating expected credit loss 

including the key inputs and 

assumptions. Since assumptions and 

parameters are based on historical data, 

we assessed whether historical 

experience was representative of current 

circumstances and are relevant; 

 Assessed and tested the design and 

operating effectiveness of the internal 

controls over the process of estimating 

recoverability and the allowance for 

impairment on trade receivables in 

accordance with Ind AS 109; 

 Understanding the key inputs used in 

the provisioning model by the 

Company such as repayment history, 

terms of underlying arrangements, 

overdue balances, market conditions, 

etc. 

 Tested the methodology applied in the 

credit loss provision calculation by 

comparing it to the requirements of Ind 

AS 109, and appropriateness and 

reasonableness of the assumptions 

related to credit loss rate including the 

historical bad-debts applied in their 

assessment of the receivables allowance 

 Obtained balance confirmation for 

selected samples as provided by the 

management and verified the 

reconciliation for differences, if any for 

the confirmations received; 

 Assessed the recoverability of overdue 

trade receivables through inquiry with 

the management and by obtaining 

sufficient corroborative evidence to 

support the conclusion; 

 

 

 

The Company is in the process of completing 

the necessary formalities and documentation 

for submission to the RBI through the bank 

and expects to regularize the matter shortly. 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. 

extension of time from Reserve Bank of 

India (RBI) for delay in recovering dues 

from the foreign customers outstanding 

for a period exceeding 270 days from the 

date it became due for payment. 

 

We draw your attention to Note no. 35  of 

financial results, During the year, the 

Company had extended advances 

aggregating ₹63.75 crores to two 

suppliers against procurement of 

materials. Subsequently, the intended 

customer declined to accept materials 

from the said suppliers. In response, the 

Company, in consultation with the 

original advance recipients, identified 

alternate vendors who would supply the 

required materials, with settlement to be 

made by the parties to whom the 

advances were originally issued. As of 

31st March 2025, advances amounting to 

₹44.87 crores remain unsettled and are 

classified under "Other Current Assets" 

in the financial statements. 

 

We draw your attention to note No. 40 to 

the financial results, the Company had 

entered into a continuous supply 

arrangement and all terms and conditions 

mutually decided with Reliance 

Industries Limited (customer) for the 

supply of various products, valued at Rs. 

51.42 (Rs. 60.68 cr including GST & 

TDS) crores. Under this arrangement, 

materials were supplied directly from the 

supplier’s location to Reliance Industries 

Limited following a "Bill to Ship to" 

model. Our vendors, under our 

instructions, delivered materials directly 

to Reliance Industries Limited on a 

regular basis, with each delivery 

supported by a valid invoice and e-way 

 
 

 

 
 

 

The management is actively pursuing 

resolution of these outstanding amounts 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Order is stand fulfilled and completed as of 

31.03.2025. 
 



 

bill. As this was a continuous supply 

arrangement, we issue periodic invoices 

that consolidate all deliveries made to 

Reliance Industries within the billing 

period, ensuring accurate and efficient 

accounting of supplies.The advance 

received from RIL was Rs. 51.42 cr (Rs. 

60.68 crores including GST & TDS) 

against which supplies made till 31st 

March, 2025 was Rs. 51.42 cr. 

 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but 

does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 

to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements  

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income and cash 

flows and statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of 

the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 

assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors is also 

responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 



 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion through a separate report on the complete set of 

financial statements on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management in the standalone financial statements. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management on use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of the statement in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 

of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.   

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 



 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 

of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure B’ a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;   

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books;   

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act; 

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company  

and  the  operating  effectiveness of  such  controls,  refer  to  our  separate  Report  in “Annexure A”. Our 

report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 

internal financial controls over financial reporting.  

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us:   

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements.   

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 

material foreseeable losses, if  any,  on  long-term  contracts  including derivative contracts.   

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 



 

and Protection Fund by the Company.   

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 

in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-

statement. 

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company 

vi. Based on our examination, the company, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of 

account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The company has implemented the 

audit trail facility and is working. 

(C) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197 of the Act.  

 

 

For Hiren Buch Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm’s Registration No. 116131W)  

 

Sd/- 

Hiren Buch 

Partner                  Place: Mumbai 

(Membership No.045767)                                                                     Date:   22ND May 2025 

UDIN:-25045767BNKNYM4339 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT -31st MARCH 2025 
(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report of even date) 

 

Opinion  

 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, 

in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (The ‘Guidance Note’).  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility  

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS 

financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 



 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.  

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements 

 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.  

 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 

For Hiren Buch Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm’s Registration No. 116131W)  

 

Sd/- 

Hiren Buch 

Partner            Place: Mumbai 

(Membership No.045767)                                                                     Date:   22ND May 2025 

UDIN:-25045767BNKNYM4339 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on 
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of ISHAN INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED of even date) 
 
To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 
 

i. (a) (A) The Company’s record in respect of fixed assets are required to be updated, at present the 
records maintained does not show full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.  

 
(B) The Company is not having any intangible assets. 
 
( b ) The Assets of the Company have not been physically verified by the management of the 

Company. The Company is not having any program for carrying out physical verification of the 
fixed assets of the Company. 

 
(c ) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 2 on Property, plant and 

equipment to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. 
 
(d ) The Company has not revalue its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) 

or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated 

on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore 
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the 
details in its standalone financial statements does not arise. 

 
ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by 
Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared 
to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory. 

 
(b)The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit (Packing Credit Limit) in excess of ₹ 5 Crore in 

aggregate, at any points of time during the period, from banks or Financials institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. As per information and explanations provided the said limits are against 
current assets and collateral securities. This being a clean packing credit limit. As informed to us the 
Company is not required to submit any quarterly financial information to the lender in respect of the said 
limits. 

 
iii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the company, during the year the company has made investment to other entities: 

(A) the aggregate amount during the year with respect to such Investment, loans or advances and 

guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is Rs.NIL/- and balance 

outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs.NIL/-; 

(B) the aggregate amount during the year with respect to such investment, loans or advances and 



 

guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is Rs.NIL/- 

and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs.3,55,00,000/- 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the company, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the 

terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees 

provided are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans 
granted, investments made and guarantee and securities provided, as applicable. 

 
v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the 

meaning of section 73,74,75 and 76 of the Act and Rules framed there under to the extent notified,  
hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section 

(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. 
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
vii. In respect of statutory dues:  

 
 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company 
examined by us, In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added 
Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there were no disputed statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) as at 31st 
March, 2025, which have not been deposited on account of dispute,  
 

 
 

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company examined 
by us there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 that has not been 
recorded in the books of accounts.  

 
ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations 

given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest to any lender during the year. 

 
(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 
we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or government or any government authority. 
 
(c)In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have 



 

been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and 
on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the 
Company has not used funds raised on short-term basis for long-term purposes. 
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures. 
 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 
 

x. The Company had come out with public issue of 22,80,000 share NSE Emerge Platform for SMEs and 
raised Rs. 1824.00 Lacs. The shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange on 22nd 
September,2022. The utilization of IPO proceeds as at 31.03.2025 is as follows  

 

 
 

 
xi. During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares and the company 

has not issued any convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally), Hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable 

 
xii. (a)During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any 
such case by the Management. 

 
(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the 
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company 
 
(c)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

Proposed 
Utilization as per 

Prospectus

Unutilized as of 
31.03.2024

Inter-head 
Adjustment

Utilization from 
01.04.2024 to

Utilization from 
01.10.2024 to

Unutilized 
as of 

31.03.2025

30.09.2024 31.03.2025

1
Public Issue Expenses

194 0 0 0 0 0

2
Funding the Proposed Joint Venture and/or

Acquisition 
350 0 0 0 0 0

3 To meet the working Capital requirements 1000 53.25 243.4 228.4 68.25 0

4 General Corporate Expenses 280 280 -243.4 36.6 0 0

Total 1824 333.25 0 265 68.25 0

Sr. 
No

Object of the Issue



 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not received whistle-blower complaints during the year.  
 

xiii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting 
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xiv. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed at Note No 33  in the Standalone Financials statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards.   

xv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company need to 
strengthen internal audit system keeping in mind the size and nature of its business. 

            (b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. 
xvi. In our opinion during the period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 

Directors or persons connected with its directors, and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvii. (a)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934.  
 
(b)The Company has not conducted non-banking Standalone Financials / Housing Finance 

activities during the year, accordingly the reporting under clause 3(xv)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
(c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC), as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) ( c ) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  

 
 

(d) Based on the Information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the 
Group has no Company defined as Core Investment Company (CIC), as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) ( d ) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  
 

xviii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the previous year. The accumulated Cash losses as at 
31st March, 2025 are Rs. NIL. 
 

xix. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.  
 

xx. On the basis of the Standalone Financials ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 
Standalone Financials assets and payment of Standalone Financials liabilities, other information 
accompanying the Standalone Financials statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one period from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one period from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
xxi. As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the company is not liable to contribution toward CSR, 

accordingly clause 3(xx)(a)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 



 

 
xxii. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 

Financials statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this 
report 

 

For Hiren Buch Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm’s Registration No. 116131W)  

 

 

Sd/- 

Hiren Buch 

Partner           Place: Mumbai 

(Membership No.045767)                                                            Date:   22ND May 2025 

UDIN:-25045767BNKNYM4339 
 

 

 



ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

(Formally Known as Ishan Internationl Private Limited) 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS ON 31ST MARCH 2025 

( Amount in Lakhs) 

 
 

 

Sr No 

 
 

 
Particulars 

Note 

No. 

 
 

 

As at March, 2025 

 
 

 

As at March, 2024 

I. ASSETS    

1 Non-current assets    

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment    

 (i) Tangible assets 2 175.58 173.06 
 (b) Financial Assets    

 (i) Non-current investments 3 459.24 456.35 
 (ii) Loans 4 1.85 1.15 
 (c) Other non-current assets 5 40.90 21.98 

 

 
2 

(d)  Deferred Tax Assets 
Total Non Current Assets 

Current assets 

6 34.30 
711.88 

35.74 
688.28 

 (a) Inventories 7 38.68 37.05 
 (b) Financial assets    

 (i) Investments    

 (ii) Trade receivables 8 581.25 1437.35 
 (iii) Cash and bank balances 9 74.08 167.26 
 (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 10 209.24 316.50 
 (v) Loans 11 273.34 412.37 
 (c) Other current assets 12 5088.06 6759.06 
 Total Current Assets  6264.66 9129.61 
 Total Assets  6976.53 9817.89 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 
EQUITY 

(a) Share capital 

(b) Other Equity 

(c) Money received against 

share warrants 
Total Shareholders' Fund 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Long-term borrowings 

(b) Long-term provisions 

Total Non Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Short-term borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

Due to micro and small enterprises 

Due to others 

(b) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 

(c) Other current liabilities 

(d) Short-term provisions 

Total Current Liabilites 

   

1 
   

 13 2162.35 2162.35 

 14 95.43 208.08 

  
0.00 0.00 

  2257.78 2370.43 

2    

  
15 

 
31.76 

 
73.64 

 16 32.63 29.85 

  64.40 103.48 

  
17 

 
575.08 

 
529.68 

 18   

  3834.05 566.30 
  63.23 0.29 
 19 1.28 20.80 
 20 177.93 6204.60 
 21 2.78 22.29 

  4654.35 7343.97 

 Total Liabilities  6976.53 9817.89 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements 

 

 
In terms of our report attached 

For Hiren Buch Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 116131W 

 
        Sd/-                                                                                                                         Sd/-                               Sd/- 

CA. HIREN BUCH 

Partner 

Shantanu Srivastava 
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ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

(Formally Known as Ishan International Private Limited) 

Profit and loss statement for the Period ended 31st March 2025 

( Amount in Lakhs) 

 
Particulars 

Note 

No. 

For the Year 

ended March 

2025 

For the Year 

ended March 

2024 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

 
22 

23 

 
7265.34 

89.50 

 
3012.86 

138.93 

Total Income  7354.83 3151.79 

Expenses: 

Materials Costs 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Raw Materials 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Other expenses 

 
24 

25 

26 

27 

2 

28 

 
6738.68 

-1.62 

208.35 

54.82 

15.38 

310.37 

 
2261.62 

-23.57 

218.89 

59.32 

16.20 

534.92 

Total Expenses  7325.98 3067.37 

 
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 

  
28.85 

 
84.43 

Less: Exceptional items 
 

0.00 

Income of Earlier Years  0.00 

Taxes of Earlier years' written back  0.00 

Earlier Years' Interest Expenses  0.00 

Profit before extraordinary items and tax  28.85 84.43 

 
Extraordinary Items 

   
0.00 

Profit before tax  28.85 84.43 

Less: Tax Expenses 

(1) Current tax 

(2) Deferred tax Liabilities/(Assets) 

(3) Earlier Year Tax Expense/ (Income) 

  
5.92 

1.44 

 
50.10 

-21.68 

-1.23 

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations  21.49 57.23 

Other Comprehensive income    

(a) Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  0.00 

Gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 1.66 -4.06 

(b) Items to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
 

0.00 

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1.66 -4.06 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 23.16 61.29 

Profit available for appropriation (after tax)  23.16 61.29 

Profit (Loss) for the period  23.16 61.29 

Earnings per equity share: 

(1) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

 
37 

37 

 
0.01 

0.01 

 
0.03 

0.03 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements 
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ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

(Formally Known as Ishan International Private Limited) 

Cash Flow Statement for the Period ended 31st March, 2025 

  
 
 

 
(Amount in Lakhs) 

 
Particulars 

For the Year ended March 2025 For the Year ended March 2024 

A. Cash flow from operating activities  
 

 

15.38 

54.82 

1.66 

-36.16 
 
 
 

 

-1.62 

856.10 

139.04 

1671.00 

-18.93 

 

3330.68 

-6026.68 

-19.52 

-19.51 

0.00 

2.79 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1.44 

-17.89 

36.16 

-0.71 

-2.89 
 
 
 
 
 

 
-41.87 

45.40 
 

 
-135.81 

-54.82 

   

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax 28.85  84.43 

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation and amortisation  16.20  

Finance costs  59.32  

Acturial gain on gratuity  4.06  

Interest income  -58.54  

 35.71  21.04 

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 64.56  105.47 

Changes in working capital:    

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:    

Inventories  -23.57  

Trade receivables  -130.41  

Short-term loans and advances  -177.81  

Other Current Assets  -5914.17  

Other non-current assets  11.06  

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:  0.00  

Trade payables  53.34  

Other current liabilities  6153.72  

Current Tax Liabilities    

Short-term provisions  -3.84  

Other Long Term Liabilities  0.00  

Long-term provisions -86.65 0.69 -31.00 

Cash generated from operations -22.09 

7.36 

-29.45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

16.11 

 
16.11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
-187.10 

 74.47 

Net income tax (paid) / refunds  27.19 

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  47.28 

B. Cash flow from investing activities   

Reduction in CWIP   

Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities created -21.68  

Addition to fixed Assets -43.38  

Interest received 58.54  

Long term loans and advances 1.82  

Non Current Investment -22.06  

  -26.76 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  -26.76 

 
C. Cash flow from financing activities 

  

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital (Including Share Premium)(Net of Issue Exp.) 0.00 

Increase / (Decrease) in long-term borrowings -15.92 

Increase / (Decrease) in other short-term borrowings 135.82 

Sale of fixed assets 0.00 

Money Received Against Share Warrants 0.00 

ECL through Reserves -72.74 

Finance cost -59.32 

Dividends paid 0.00 

  

 -12.16 

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) -187.10 -12.16 

 
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year Comprises: 

(a) Cash on hand 

(b) Balances with banks 

(i) In current accounts 

(iii) In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 

(iv) In Other Bank Balance 

Total 

  
-200.44 

  
8.36 

483.77 475.40 

283.33 483.77 

 
31.77 

 
36.14 

42.31 131.12 
 0.00 

209.24 316.50 

283.33 483.77 

Notes : - - 

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Accounting Standard - 3 

on “Cash Flow Statements” prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,2006. 

2. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s 

presentation. 
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ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 

CIN: L74899DL1995PLC069144 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31.03.2025 

 

A Equity share capital Amount in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 
Balance as at 

1 April 2023 

Issue of Bonus shares 

during the year 

Balance as at 

31st March 2024 

Issue of bonus shares 

during the year 

Balance as at 

31st March 2025 

Equity share capital 720.78 1441.57 2162.35 0.00 2162.35 

 

 

B Other equity Amount in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

Reserve and surplus  

Total Securities 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 1516.70 144.39 1661.09 

Loss for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Utilization for Issue of Bonus Shares -1441.57 0.00 -1441.57 

Addition during the year 0.00 61.29 61.29 

Transferred towards ECL 0.00 -72.74 -72.74 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 75.13 132.95 208.08 

Loss for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Loss pertaininig to discontinuing operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Utilization for Issue of Bonus Shares 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Additon during the year 0.00 23.16 23.16 

Transferred towards ECL  -135.81 -135.81 

Balance as at 31st March 2025 75.13 20.30 95.43 

 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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ISHAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 
Statement of Property, Plant & Equipment as on 31st March, 2025 

 
 

 
NOTE: 2 

Property, plant and equipment 

Details of company property, plant and equipment and their carrying amounts are as follows: 

Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars Office Building Furniture and fittings Office equipments Computer equipment Vehicles Total 

Gross block       

Balance as at 1 April 2023 151.58 42.50 19.58 16.07 37.03 266.75 

Addition during the year 9.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.61 44.08 

Disposal/ adjustment  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.70 0.70 

Disposal/ adjustment on account of business transfer 0.00     0.00 

Transfer to discontinuing operations 0.00     0.00 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 161.04 42.50 19.58 16.07 70.95 310.14 

Addition during the year 0.00 16.18 0.59 1.82 0.00 18.60 

Disposal/ adjustment 0.00  0.00 0.00 0.71 0.71 

Disposal/ adjustment on account of business transfer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Transfer to discontinuing operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 161.04 58.68 20.17 17.89 70.25 328.03 

 
Accumulated depreciation 

      

Balance as at 1 April 2023 15.93 37.46 18.21 14.77 34.50 120.87 

Charge during the year 9.41 0.58 0.03 0.18 6.00 16.20 

Disposal/ adjustment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Disposal/ adjustment on account of business transfer 0.00     0.00 

Transfer to discontinuing operations 0.00     0.00 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 25.34 38.04 18.23 14.95 40.51 137.07 

Charge during the year 7.69 1.25 0.07 1.53 4.84 15.38 

Disposal/ adjustment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Disposal/ adjustment on account of business transfer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Transfer to discontinuing operations       

Balance as at 31 March 2025 33.03 39.29 18.30 16.48 45.34 152.45 

 
Net block 

      

Balance as at 1 April 2023 135.65 5.04 1.37 1.29 2.53 145.88 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 135.70 4.46 1.34 1.12 30.44 173.06 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 128.01 19.39 1.87 1.41 24.90 175.58 
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Notes forming Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 
Note 

No. 

1 Significant Accounting Policies 

a Company Overview 

Ishan International Limited. (“the Company”) is a limiited Company incorporated in India having its registered office at New Delhi, India. The Company is in Engineering , 

Procurement and Construction (EPC) Business. The Company was registred as Private Limited Company under the provisions of The Companies Act, 1956 and got converted in 

to Limited company on 17th January, 2022. It's Equity Shares are Listed at National Stock Exchange (NSE) 

 

b Basis of Preperation 

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where 

compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting 

held on 22nd May, 2025. 

c Basis of Accounting 

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value in accordance 

with Ind AS. Fair value measurements are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of 

the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities. 

 

 

d Presentation of financial statements 

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The 

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in 

the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with 

the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended. 

e Operating cycle for current and non-current classification 

Operating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project/contract/ product line/service including the defect liability period wherever 

applicable and extends up to the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective lines of business. 

 

f Use of judgement and estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain estimates, judgements and assumptions. These affect the application 

of accounting policies, the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date of the financial statements and 

reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period and the actual results could differ from those estimates. 

These are reviewed by the management on an on-going basis and appropriate changes in estimates are made prospectively as management becomes aware of changes in 

circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects 

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of these financial statements are just, prudent and reasonable. 

 

g Exceptional Items 

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an understanding of  the performance of the Company is treated as an 

exceptional item and disclosed as such in the financial statements. 

 
h Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is 

stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. PPE acquired on hire purchase basis are 

recognised at their cash values. Cost includes professional fees related to the acquisition of PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the 

Company’s accounting policy. 

 
Own manufactured PPE is capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of overheads. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable 

to construction or acquisition of PPE or bringing the PPE to working condition are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the PPE. 

 
PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work-in-progress”. (Also refer to policy on leases, borrowing costs, impairment of 

assets and foreign currency transactions infra). 

 
Depreciation is recognised using written Down value method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their 

residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, 

over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 

embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ 

residual value is accounted on prospective basis.Where cost of a part of the asset (“asset component”) is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is 

different from the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately and such asset component is depreciated over its separate useful 

life 

 
Depreciation on additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. Extra shift depreciation is provided on a location basis. 

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. 

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term. Where there is reasonable certainty that the Company shall obtain ownership 

of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are depreciated based on the useful life adopted by the Company for s imilar assets. 

Freehold land is not depreciated 

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives are as under: Useful Lives (In Years) 

Particulars of Assets 15 

Plant and Machinery 30 

Factory Premises and Weighbridge 8 

Motor cars, Trucks and Dumpers etc. 10 

Furniture and Other equipments 5 

Office equipments 3 

Computers  

The Company have a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner. Fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year. 



i Foreign currency Transactions 

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely approximating the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Liabilities and receivables in 

foreign currency are restated at the year-end exchange rates. All exchange rate differences arising from conversion in terms of the above are included in the statement of profit 

and loss 

 
j Revenue Recognition 

Ind AS 115: The objective of this Standard is to establish the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, 

amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. 

Indentifying the Contract 

An entity shall account for a contract with a customer that is within the scope of this Standard only when all of the following criteria are met: 

(a) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary business practices) and are committed to perform their 

respective obligations; 

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred; 

(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred; 

(d) the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and 

(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In 

evaluating whether collectability of an amount of consideration is probable, an entity shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of  

consideration when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable 

because the entity may offer the customer a price concession. 

Identifying Performance Obligation: 

At contract inception, an entity shall assess the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and shall identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer 

to the customer either: (a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or 596 (b) a series of dis tinct goods or services that are substantially the same and 

that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. 

Satisfaction of performance obligations: 

An entity shall recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is 

transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. 

Performance obligations satisfied over time 

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship 

between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment. An entity shall present any unconditional rights to consideration separately as a receivable. 

Measurement 

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, an entity shall recognise as revenue the amount of the transaction price (which excludes estimates of  variable consideration) 

that is allocated to that performance obligation. 

Determining the transaction price 

An entity shall consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to 

which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, 

some sales taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. 

 
k Investments: 

Under Ind AS, these financial assets have been classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) on the date of transition and fair value changes after the date of transition 

has been recognised in profit or loss. 

 
l Fair value measurement : 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

(a) 

 

(b) 

Fair value of current assets which includes loans given, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets - approximate their carrying amounts. 

Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of 

the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not 

materially different from their carrying amounts. 

m Borrowings 

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets  acquired on finance lease and exchange 

differences arising on foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. 

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitalised/inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that 

necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Profit or Loss in the period in which they are 

incurred. 

n Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, 

financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction values and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction 

costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) 

are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such financial assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Profit or Loss. 

In case of funding to subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preference shares, the excess of the actual amount of the funding over initially 

measured fair value is accounted as an equity investment. 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised 

amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(i) Financial Assets 

(A) All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety either at amortised cost or at fair value depending on the classification of the financial assets as 

follows: 

(i) Investments in debt instruments that are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - at fair value. 

(ii) Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at - at amortised cost (unless the same designated as fair value through 

profit or loss): 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 
The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(iii) Investment in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI] (unless the 

same are designated as fair value through profit or loss) 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(iv) Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, if any, and all changes are recognised in profit or loss. 



(v) Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies are measured at cost less impairment. 

(vi) Investment in preference shares of the subsidiary companies are treated as equity instruments if the same are convertible into equity shares or are redeemable out of the 

proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose of redemption of such investments. Investment in preference shares not meeting the aforesaid conditions are 

classified as debt instruments at FVTPL. 

(vii) Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the related instruments are not held for trading and the Company irrevocably elects on initial 

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income. 

(B)  
For financial assets that are measured at FVTOCI, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment and exchange difference, if any, (on debt instrument) 

are recognised in profit or loss and changes in fair value (other than on account of above income or expense) are recognised in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated in other equity. On disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to profit or loss. 

In case of equity instruments at FVTOCI, such cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of investments. 

(C) A financial asset is primarily derecognised when: 

(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or 

(ii) the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 

third party under a pass-through arrangement; and (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is 

recognised in Profit or Loss. 

(D) Impairment of financial assets: The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix 

constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109. Impairment loss on investments is recognised when the carrying amount 

exceeds its recoverable amount. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities 

(i) 
Financial liabilities, including derivatives and embedded derivatives, which are designated for measurement at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Financial 

guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the amount of impairment loss allowance or the amount recognised at inception net of cumulative amortisation, 

whichever is higher. All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled. 

 
Inventories 

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence, as under: 

(i) Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose tools at lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value. However, these items are 

considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

(ii) Manufacturing work-in-progress at lower of weighted average cost including related overheads or net realisable value. In some cases, manufacturing work-in-progress are 

valued at lower of specifically identifiable cost or net realisable value. In the case of qualifying assets, cost also includes applicable borrowing costs vide policy relating to 

borrowing costs. 

(iii) Finished goods and stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading) at lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value. Cost includes related overheads and 

GST paid/payable on such goods. 

(iv) 
Completed property/work-in-progress (including land) in respect of property development activity at lower of specifically identifiable cost or net realisable value.

 

Assessment of net realisable value is made at each reporting period end and when the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer 

exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the write-down, if any, in the past period is reversed to 

the extent of the original amount written-down so that the resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value. 

 
p Cash and Bank Balances 

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. 

Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents. 

 
q Securities Premium Account 

Securities premium includes: 

(i) The difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of shares issued. 

(ii) The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities premium account. 

 
r Employee Benefits 

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia and performance-linked rewards falling due wholly 

within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related 

service. 

(ii) Post Employment Benefits 

(a) 
 

 
(b) 

Defined contribution plans: The Company’s superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and employee pension 

scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related 

service. 

Defined Benefit Plans: The employees’ gratuity fund schemes and employee provident fund schemes managed by board of trustees established by the Company, the 

post-retirement medical care plan and the Company pension plan represent defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is 

determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate based on the market yield on government securities of a maturity period 

equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at the Balance Sheet date.  

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset) and 

any change in the effect of asset ceiling (if applicable) is recognised in other comprehensive income and is reflected in retained earnings and the same is not eligible to be 

reclassified to profit or loss. Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on settlements are recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss as employee benefits expense. Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the Statement  of Profit and Loss under finance cost. Gains or 

losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or 

curtailment and when the company recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits. 

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis. 

(iii) Long Term Employee benefits 

The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as compensated absences, long service award etc. is measured at present value of estimated future cash flows 

expected to be made by the Company and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide (ii)(B)  supra. 

Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost and gains or losses on curtailments and settlements, re-measurements including actuarial gains and losses 

are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost implicit in long term employee benefit cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss under finance cost. 

(iv) Terminal Benefits 

Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense when the Company’s offer of the termination benefit is accepted or 

when the Company recognises the related restructuring costs whichever is earlier. 



s Taxes on Income 

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,1961 and 

based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals. 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax 

bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences including the temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 

associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference 

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains” are recognised and carried forward to the extent of available 

taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 

realised. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of reporting 

period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Transaction or event which is recognised outside Profit or Loss, either in Other Comprehensive Income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable. 

 
t Leases 

Ind AS 116 – Leases which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract and replaces the 

previous standard on leasing, Ind AS 17 – Leases. Ind AS 116 eliminates the classification of leases for the lessee as either operating leases or finance leases as required by Ind 

AS 17 and instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model whereby a lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term that is greater than 12 

months, unless the underlying asset is of low value, and to recognise depreciation of leased assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. 

The accounting by lessors under the new standard is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting in Ind AS 17. Lessors classify all leases using the same classification 

principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. For operating leases, lessors continue to recognize the underlying asset. For 

finance leases, lessors derecognize the underlying asset and recognize a net investment in the lease similar to today’s requirements. Any selling profit or loss is recognized at 

lease commencement. 

u Provisions, contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognised only when 

(i) the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; (ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation; and 

(ii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision 

is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the 

reimbursement will be received. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of: 

(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 

(ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation 

under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. 

 
v Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect 

method, adjusting the profit before tax excluding exceptional items for the effects of: 

(i)changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature; 

(ii)non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses; and 

(iii) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as at the date of Balance 

Sheet. 

 
3 Non Current Financial Assets-Investments Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

A) Investments at amortized cost  

 
88.47 

 

 
15.77 

355.00 

 

 
70.72 

 

 
30.63 

355.00 

 
Non Agricultural Land 

B)  Investments at Fair value through other comprehensive income 

 
1 Investment in Government Securities 
2 Investment in Equity Shares of RACE ENVISION Private Limited (No. of Shares-355000 ) 

Total 459.24 456.35 

Disclosure   

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

Unquoted Investment 
Book Value 

 
443.47 

 
425.72 

Quoted Investment 

Cost 
Market Value 

 
9.11 

15.77 

 
13.57 
30.63 

Note : 1. Investment have been classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) on the date of transition and fair value changes after the date of transition have been 

recongnised in Profit or Loss. 

2. Investment in Equit shares of RACE Envisoon Private Limited is made at a premium of Rs. 90 on a equity share of Rs. 10 each 



4 Non Current Financial Assets-Loans Amount in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

 

As at 31st March 

2025 

 
As at 31st March 

2024 

1. Unsecured considered good (refer Note 41)  
 

1.85 
 

1.15 a  Employee Loan 

Total 1.85 1.15 

 

 
5 Other Non Current Assets Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

 
As at 31st March 

2025 

 
As at 31st March 

2024 

i. Capital Advance 

ii. Advances other than Capital Advance 

Security Deposits 

i  Balances with government authorities 

GST & Others (Refer Note 36) 

 

 
21.98 

 
18.93 

 

 

21.98 

 
0.00 

Total 40.90 21.98 

 

 

6 Deferred Tax Assets Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

 
As at 31st March 

2025 

 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Timing difference for the current year - (Liabilities) / Assets 
Deferred tax (Liabilities) / Assets -Opening Balance 

-1.44 
35.74 

0.00 
35.74 

Total 34.30 35.74 

 

 
7 Inventories (As taken, valued and certified by management) Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

 
As at 31st March 

2025 

 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Stock in Trade 38.68 37.05 

Total 38.68 37.05 

 
8 Current Financial Assets -Trade Receivables (refer note 34 ) 

 
Particulars 

 
As at 31st March 

2025 

 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Trade Receivables (Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)   

(i) Outstanding for a period over six months from the due date 331.55 73.06 

(ii) Others 24.66 1066.00 

Trade Receivables (Unsecured considered doubtful, unless stated otherwise)   

(i) Outstanding for a period over six months from the due date 561.01 506.36 

Less: Provision for Expected Credit loss 335.96 208.07 
 225.04 298.29 

Total 581.25 1437.35 

Note : Trade receivables outstanding for over six months are slow moving and are subject to reconciliation and confirmation arising out of various Contractual obligations and 

are considered good and realisable by Management. 

 
Amount in Lakhs 

 Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment 

Particulars Not Due 0 to 6 Months 6 to 12 Months 1 to 2 Years 2 to 3 Years 
3 Years and 

More Total 

As at 31st March ,2025        

Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered Good 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered Doubtful 

Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered Good 
Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered Doubtful 

179.76 

 
0.00 

0.00 

125.63 

 
0.00 

0.00 

49.09 

 
0.00 

0.00 

1.74 

 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

225.04 

335.96 

0.00 

0.00 

581.25 

335.96 

0.00 

0.00 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss       335.96 

Net Trade Receivables as of 31.03.2025 179.76 125.63 49.09 1.74 0.00 561.01 581.25 

As at 31st March ,2024 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered Good 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered Doubtful 

Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered Good 
Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered Doubtful 

 
85.07 

- 

- 

- 

 
980.93 

- 

- 

- 

 
- 

45.35 

- 

- 

 
73.06 

303.20 

- 

- 

 
- 

- 

- 

- 

 
- 

157.81 

- 

- 

 
1,139.06 

506.36 

- 

- 
 85.07 980.93 45.35 376.26 376.26 157.81 1,645.42 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss       208.07 

Net Trade Receivables as of 31.03.2024       
1,437.35 

 
9 Cash and Bank Balances Amount in Lakhs 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
10 

 

 
 

 
Note : Deposits- Margin money with bank represents balance in Fixed deposit accounts with bank 'having fixed maturity period, subject to renewal as per requirement to be a 

security. 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

a  Cash & cash equivalents 

i Balances with Bank 

In Current Accounts 

ii Cash in Hand 

Sub Total (a) 

b  Other Bank Balances 

i Deposits- Margin money (Refer note below) 

ii Earmarked Balances (unpaid dividend accounts) 

 

 

42.31 
31.77 

 

 

131.12 

36.14 

167.26 

 
316.50 

 
316.50 

74.08 

 
209.24 

0.00 

209.24 

Total 283.33 483.77 

 



11 Current Loans (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Loan to NBFC 273.34 411.07 

Loan to Employee 0.00 1.31 

Total 273.34 412.37 

 

 
12 Other Current Assets Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

(i) Capital Advance (A) 0.00 118.14 

(B) Advance other than capital Advance   

(a) Advances to Suppliers 5002.07 6544.72 

Less: Expected Credit Allowance -11.96 -5.98 
 

4990.11 6538.74 

(b) Advance to Others 13.80 24.26 

(c) Advance to Related Parties i.e. KMP 0.01 6.63 

(c) Advance to Employees 5.49 1.08 

Total Amount (B) 5009.42 6570.72 

(ii) Others   

(a) Interest receivable of Fixed Deposit and Sweeping deposit 30.70 27.61 

(b) Imprest Accounts 0.00  

Less: Expected Credit Allowance 0.00  

(c) Prepaid Expenses 1.36 7.75 

(d) Export Incentive Receivable 41.55 29.70 

(e ) TDS Recoverable on Advance 5.04 5.15 

Total Amount (C) 78.65 70.21 

Total 5088.06 6759.06 

 

13 Share Capital Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
 

 
2300.00 

 
2162.35 

Authorised 

23,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 

Issued, subscribed and Paid up 
21,62,35,290 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up 

 
2300.00 

 
2162.35 

Total 2162.35 2162.35 

Note 

i The Company doesn't have any holding company, ultimate holding company, subsidiaries, associates of the holding company or associates of the ultimate holding 

company for current year and/or previous year. 

ii There are no unpaid calls from any director or officers of the company for current and previous year. 

Terms / Rights attached to equity shares: 

i Voting :The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

ii Liquidation :In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution 

of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

iii Dividend: The Board of Directors do not propose dividend for financial period ended on 31st March, 2025 

Disclosure relating to shareholder holding more than 5% 

Previous years' figures are shown in brackets 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars 
Number of Shares 

Held 
% 

i Shantanu Srivastava Curent Year 
(Previous Year) 

69,189,330 32.00% 
 (109,173,330) 50.49% 

ii Satyam Srivastava Curent Year 
(Previous Year) 

35,300,460 16.33% 
 (35,300,460) 16.33% 

 Total Curent Year 
(Previous Year) 

104,489,790 48.33% 

(144,473,790) 66.81% 

 
Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares Previous years' figures are shown in brackets 
 As at 31st March, 2025 

No. of Shares Amount in Lakhs 

Opening Balance Curent Year 216,235,290 2162.35 
 (Previous Year) (7,207,843) -720.78 

 Add:- Increase in shares on account of Split Curent Year - 0.00 

Add:- Increase in shares on account of Split (Previous Year) (64,870,587) Not Applicable 

Add: Bonus Equity shares issue during the year Curent Year - 0.00 

Add: Bonus Equity shares issue during the year (Previous Year) (144,156,860) -1441.57 

Add: Allotment Equity shares issue during the year Curent Year - 0.00 

Add: Allotment Equity shares issue during the year (Previous Year) (2,280,000) -228.00 

Less: Redeemed/ buy back during the year Curent Year -  

 (Previous Year) -  

Total Current Year 216,235,290 2162.35 
 (Previous Year) (216,235,290) -2162.35 

 
Promoters sharehoding as on 31st March 2025 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

1 Shantanu Srivastava No. of Shares at the beginning of the year 

Increase in shares on account of split* 

Increase in shares on account of Bonus 

Shares sold during the year 

No. of Shares at the end of the year 

% of Total shares 

% of changes during the year 

109,173,330.00 3,731,911.00 

- 33,587,199.00 

- 74,638,220.00 

39,984,000.00 (2,784,000.00) 

69,189,330.00 109,173,330.00 

32.00% 50.49% 

-36.62% -2.49% 
  

2 Satyam Srivastava No. of Shares at the beginning of the year 

Increase in shares on account of split* 

Increase in shares on account of Bonus 

No. of Shares at the end of the year 

% of Total shares 

% of changes during the year 

35,300,460.00 1,176,682.00 

- 10,590,138.00 

- 23,533,640.00 

35,300,460.00 35,300,460.00 

16.33% 16.33% 
 - 

   

 
14 Other Equity Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 



a  Profit and Loss Account  
 

Opening Balance 132.95 144.39 

Less: Gratuity Provision for earlier Years  - 

Add : Profit during the year transferred 23.16 61.29 

Less : Provision for Expected Credit Loss Transferred -135.81 -72.74 

Closing Balance 20.30 132.95 

b  Securties Premium Account   

Opening Balance 75.13 1516.70 

Less: Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares 0.00 1441.57 

Add: Fresh Allotment of Shares 0.00 - 

Less: Used for Set off of IPO Expenses 0.00 - 

 
Closing Balance 

 
75.13 

 
75.13 

c  General Reserve   

Opening Balance   

Less: Utilized for Issue of Bonus Shares   

Closing Balance 0.00 0.00 

Total 95.43 208.08 

 
15 Long Term Borrowings Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

Secured   

From Banks   

a  Vehicle Loan 23.38 27.68 

b  Land Loan 0.00 27.81 

c  GECL Loan (COVID 19 Loan) 26.47 54.09 

Total Secured Loans 49.85 109.58 

Unsecured 0.00 0.00 

Total Unsecured Loans 0.00 0.00 

Total Loans 49.85 109.58 

Less: Installments Payable with in next 12 months transferred to Current Liabilities 18.09 35.94 

Total 31.76 73.64 

 

a) The Vehicle loan from Bank of India is sanctioned against security of specific vehicle. Rs. 0.09281 Lakh payable in 60 Equated Monthly Installment (Interest Rate 9.20%) 

starting from 17.08.2019 

b) The Vehicle loan from Bank of India is sanctioned against security of specific vehicle. Rs. 0.44837 Lakh payable in 84 Equated Monthly Installment (Interest Rate 9.10%) 

starting from 22.09.2023 

c) GECL Loan (COVID 19 Loan) is secured by Government Guarantee under CGTSME Scheme. Rs. 2.64 Lakh payable in 36 Equated Montly Installment (Interest Rate) 

starting from 04.09.2020 

d) GECL Loan (COVID 19 Loan) is secured by Government Guarantee under CGTSME Scheme. Rs. 1.36 Lakh payable in 36 Equated Montly Installment (Interest Rate) 

starting from 24.11.2021 

16 Long Term Provision Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

 
Gratuity (Unfunded) (refer note no. 26) 

 
Total 

 
32.63 

 
29.85 

0.00 

32.63 29.85 

 
17 Short Term Borrowings Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Secured 

Export Packing Credit Limit 

Loan from Director 
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowing 

 

506.44 

50.55 
18.09 

 

493.74 

- 

35.94 

Total 575.08 529.68 

i Export packing Credit on clean basis. Collaterally secured by (a)Equitable mortgage of residential flat No P-801, at Amarpali Zodiac, Noida (b) Equitable mortgage of office 

premise 1616, 16th Floor, WTT Building, Sector 16, Noida, U P of the Company, and personal Guarantees of Mr Shantanu Srivastava & Mr Satyam Srivastava 

ii It is also secured by lien over fixed Deposits amounting to Rs.77.17 Lacs of the Company 

 
18 Trade Payables Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Payable to Micro and Small Enterprise 3834.05 566.30 

Payable to Others 63.23 0.29 

Total 3897.27 566.59 

 
18 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devemoplement Act, 2006:- (Amount in Lakhs) 

Amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises are disclosed on the basis of and to the extent of information 

availbale with the Company regarding status of suppliers, which are as follows 

As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

Sr. No Particular   

1 The Prinical amount and the interest due thereon remaning unpaid to supplier at the end of accounting year 3834.05 566.30 

 The amount of interest paid by buyer in terms of section 16 of the Mircro, small and medium Enterprises Development Act   

2 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 0.00 0.00 
 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the   

 appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises   

3 Development Act, 2006; 0.00 0.00 

4 
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; 

0.00 0.00 
 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest   

 dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under   

5 section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 0.00 0.00 



18  Amount in Lakhs  
 Outstanding for 

Particulars Less than 1 
Year 

1 to 2 Years 2 to 3 Years 
More than 3 
Years 

Total 

As at 31st March , 2025      

Considered Good- MSME 3834.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 3834.05 

Considered Good -Others 12.78 0.00 15.63 34.81 63.23 

Considered Doubtful - MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Considered Doubtful -Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 3846.83 0.00 15.63 34.81 3897.27 

As at 31st March , 2024      

Considered Good- MSME 565.67 0.63 - - 566.30 

Considered Good -Others 0.29 - - - 0.29 

Considered Doubtful - MSME - - - - - 
Considered Doubtdul -Others - - - - - 

 565.96 0.63 - - 566.59 

 
19 Current Tax Liabilites (Net) Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

Current Tax Liabilites (Net)   

Opening balance 20.80 20.51 

In respect of Current Year (Net of TDS ) 1.28 0.29 

Paid During The year -20.80 0.00 
  0.00 

Total 1.28 20.80 

 
20 Other Current Liabilities Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

Expense Payable 5.71 11.16 

Advance from Customers 132.60 6141.16 

Temporarily overdrawn Current Account with Bank 36.89 - 

Statutory dues payable (Refer note 36) 2.74 52.29 

Other Advances   

Total 177.93 6204.60 

 
21 Short Term Provisions Amount in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Gratuity (short term) 1.43 2.70 

Provision for Expense 1.35 19.59 

Total 2.78 22.29 

 
22 Revenue from Operations Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Sale of products   

Export Sales 1876.60 1611.98 

Domestic Sales 5340.10 1169.35 

Sales of Services   

Export Commission 8.00 0.00 

Consultancy Fee 0.00 161.51 

Other Operating Revenue 0.00  

Export Incentives 40.64 70.03 

Total 7265.34 3012.86 

 

23 Other Income Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Discount Received 0.65 0.04 

Interests 36.16 61.60 

Exchange Rate Fluctuations 26.18 56.49 

Sundry Balances written Back 18.60 2.41 

Other Miscellaneous Income 7.90 18.40 

Total  89.50 138.93 

 
24 Materials Costs Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Opening Stock 

Add: Purchases 

 
Less: Closing Stocks 

 
6738.68 

 
2261.62 

 

Total 6738.68 2261.62 

Disclosure for value of Imported and Indigenous Raw materials and spare parts and components and consumed and % thereof - Rs NIL ( Previous Year Rs NIL) 

 
25 Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Closing Stock 38.68 37.05 

Opening Stock 37.05 13.48 

Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade -1.62 -23.57 

 
 

 
26 Employee Benefits Expenses Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Salaries 161.32 118.74 

Contributions to Provident fund/Gratuity 10.35 15.03 

Staff welfare expenses 36.68 85.11 

Total 208.35 218.89 



Disclosure as per Accounting Standards AS 15 

Defined Contribution plan : Company contribution to Provident Fund is charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective fund are due. 

Defined Benefit Plan : Gratuity liabilities are provided for based on acturial valuation. The acturial valuation is done on Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized immediately in the statements of the profit and loss account as income or expense. 

The assumptions, workings based on which gratuity liability is recognized and provided/reversed for is as below:  

Particulars Details 

Discount rate 6.93% 

Salary escalation rate 5% 

Rate of return (expected) on plan assets NIL As No Fund 

Withdrawal/Attrition rate  

Age upto 30 years 5% 

From Age 31 years to 44 years 3% 

Age above 44 Years 2% 

Benefits As per Gratuity Act 

Expected average remaining service 16.86 

Retirement age : 60 Years 

 
B) Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet: 

Particulars Amount Rs 

PVO at the end of the year 34.07 

Fair value Plan assets at the end of the year 0.00 

Funded status -34.07 

Unrecognised acturial Gain/(Loss) 0.00 

Net Assets /(Liabilities) -34.07 

 
C) Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss: 

Particulars Amount Rs 

Current Service Cost 1.92 

Interest Cost 2.35 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00 

Net Acturial Gain/(Loss) recognized for the year -1.66 

Expense/(income) to be recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 2.61 

 
D) Movements in the Liability recognized in Balance Sheet : 

Particulars Amount Rs 

Opening Net Liability 32.55 

Expenses/(reversal of earlier provision) as above 2.61 

Contribution paid -1.09 

Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 

Closing Net Liability 34.07 

Closing Current Liability 34.07 

 
27 Finance Costs Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Interest Expenses 47.71 49.15 

Bank Charges 7.11 10.17 

Total 54.82 59.32 

 
28 Other Expenses Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 15.16 0.00 

Auditor's Remuneration 3.00 3.00 

Bad Debts 0.42 55.39 

Expected Credit losss (ECL) 0.00 109.44 

Freight Outward 26.32 87.04 

Electricity Expenses 3.97 4.15 

Donation 0.20 - 

Vehicle Expenses 7.95 7.70 

Insurance 4.99 2.64 

Postage,Telegram & Courier 2.98 2.68 

Legal & Professional Charges 76.14 54.64 

Rent Rates and Property Tax 9.24 10.93 

Repairs and Maintenance -Others 7.42 10.62 

Travelling Expenses (including foreign travelling and Boarding & Lodging) 33.14 64.53 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 119.43 122.15 

Total 310.37 534.92 

 
29 Disclosure of Auditors' Remuneration Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Statutory Audit Fees 

Income Tax Audit Fees 
Certification and Other Fees 

3.00 3.00 

Total 3.00 3.00 

 
30 Disclosure of details of Managerial Remuneration Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Salaries and Allowances 40.80 47.99 

Directors' sitting Fees 4.94 3.13 

Total 45.74 51.11 

 
31 Disclosure of earnimg and expenditure in foreign currency Amount in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Earning in foreign currency 1876.60 1611.98 

Expenditure in foreign currency 202.38 205.70 



   

 
32 Disclosure of Foreign Currency dividend remittances 

 

 
Particulars 

 
For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

 
For the 

Year Ended 

March 2024 

Dividend Remittance (amount in Rs) 
Non-Resident Shareholders (numbers) 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
NIL 

 

33 Disclosire of Transactions with related Parties 

Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as follows 

Key Managerial Personnel / Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 

Sr 
No 

Name of the Personnel Role in the Company Remark 

1 

2 
3 

Mr. Shantanu Srivastava 

Mrs Neelam Gupta 

Satyam Srivastava 

Managing Director & CEO 

Director & CFO 
Son of Managing Director 

 

4 Divya Company Secretary  

 
Associates in which key managerial Personnel have significant Interest 

Sr 
No 

 
Name of the Associate Conern 

 

1 

 
2 

 
3 

Pink Panther Productions Private limited 

Divine Lotus Agrocart Private Limited 

Ishan Foundation 

Managing Director is having substantial 

Interest 

Managing Director is having substantial 

Interest 

Managing Director is a Trustee 

 
The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been indentified on the basis of information provided by the Company which has been relied upon by 

the auditors 

 
Disclosure of related party Transactions As per IND AS - 24 

 

  For the Year 31st March 2025  

(Amount in Lakhs) 

 
Transaction during the year 

 
Name of the Party 

Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Relatives of Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

Associates in which key 

Managerial personnel 

may have significant 

 
Salaries 
 

 
Reimbursement of Expenses 

 
 

 

Loan Taken by Company 
 

 
Repayment of Loan 

 

 
Repayment of Advance 
 

 

 

Loan Balance 

    

Shantanu Srivastava 28.80   

Neelam Gupta 12.00   

    

Shantanu Srivastava 5.24   

Neelam Gupta 24.97   

Satyam Srivastava  0.06  

    

Shantanu Shrivastava 295.00   

    

    

Shantanu Shrivastava 244.45   

    

    

Shantanu Srivastava 4.60   

Neelam Gupta 2.03   

    

    

Shantanu Srivastava 50.55   

    

     

 
Disclosure of related party Transactions As per IND AS - 24 

For the Year 31st 

 March 2024  
 

 
Transaction during the year 

 
Name of the Party 

Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Relatives of Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Associates in which key 
Managerial personnel 

may have significant 

Interest 
Salaries 
 

 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
 
 

 
Advance Receivable 

 
 
 

 
Advance Receivable (for purchase of Flat) 

Shantanu Srivastava 31.46   

Neelam Gupta 16.53   

    

Shantanu Srivastava 7.94   

Neelam Gupta 24.97   

Satyam Srivastava  0.05  

    

Shantanu Srivastava 4.60   

Neelam Gupta 2.03   

Devine Lotus Agrocart Private   0.31 

Pink Panther Productions Private    

    

Shantanu Srivastava 118.14   

    

     

 

 

34 As per Ind AS 109 “Financial Instrument” the company is required to consider “Provision for Expected Credit Loss” on all financial assets on the basis of expected probability of 

recoverability of such financial instrument. During the year ended on 31st March, 2025, the company has provided Rs. 135.81 Lacs towards Expected Credit Loss in the financial 

statement and routed through the reserves and surplus of the company 

 
35 The Company had extended advances aggregating ₹63.75 crores to two suppliers against procurement of materials. Subsequently, the intended customer declined to accept materials 

from the said suppliers. In response, the Company, in consultation with the original advance recipients, identified alternate vendors who would supply the required materials, with 

settlement to be made by the parties to whom the advances were originally issued. 

As of 31st March 2025, advances amounting to ₹44.87 crores remain unsettled and are classified under "Other Current Assets" in the financial statements. The management is actively 

pursuing resolution of these outstanding amounts and as of date advances amounting to ₹24.64 Crores remain unsettled 

36 Contingent Liabilities and Provisions ( to the extent not provided for) 



Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2025 

As at 31st March 

2024 

1. Contingent Liabilities 

a) Income Tax Demands 

b) Letter of Credit issued 
c) Bank Guarantees Issued 

 
- 
- 

 
- 

- 
- 2.08 

Total 2.08 - 

 

 
37 Earning Per Share 

 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 

March 2025 

For the Year Ended 

March 2024 

Profit after taxation as per Books - Amount in Rs 23.16 61.29 

Number of equity shares outstanding during the year 216,235,290.00 216,235,290.00 

Nominal Value of share 1.00 1.00 

Basic EPS (Rs) 0.01 0.03 

Calculation of Diluted EPS   

Profit after taxation as per Books - Amount in Rs 23.16 61.29 
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the year 216,235,290.00 216,235,290.00 
Diluted EPS 0.01 0.03 

 

38 The management is actively in consultation with the authorised dealer bank for seeking an extension of time from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in respect of delays in the realization 
of export receivables from certain foreign customers, which have remained outstanding for a period exceeding 270 days from their respective due dates. The Company is in the process 

of completing the necessary formalities and documentation for submission to the RBI through the bank and expects to regularize the matter shortly 

 
39 The Company had come out with public issue of 22,80,000 share NSE Emerge Platform for SMEs and raised Rs. 1824.00 Lacs. The shares of the Company were listed on National Stock 

Exchange on 22nd September,2024. The utilization of IPO proceeds as at 31.03.2025 is as follows 

 
Sr. 

No 

 
 

Object of the Issue 

Proposed 

Utilization as per 

Prospectus 

Unutilized as of 

31.03.2024 

Inter-head 

Adjustment 

Utilization from 

01.04.2024 to 

 
30.09.2024 

Utilization from 

01.10.2024 to 

 
31.03.2025 

Unutilized as 

of 

31.03.2025 

1 
Public Issue Expenses 

194 0 0 0 0 0 

2 
Funding the Proposed Joint Venture and/or 
Acquisition 350 0 0 0 0 0 

3 To meet the working Capital requirements 1000 53.25 243.4 228.4 68.25 0 

4 General Corporate Expenses 280 280 -243.4 36.6 0 0 

 
Total 1824 333.25 0 265 68.25 0 

40 
The Company had entered into a continuous supply arrangement and all terms and conditions mutually decided with Reliance Industries Limited (customer) for the supply of 

various products, valued at Rs. 51.42 (Rs. 60.68 cr including GST & TDS) crores. Under this arrangement, materials were supplied directly from the supplier’s location to 

Reliance Industries Limited following a "Bill to Ship to" model. 

 
Our vendors, under our instructions, delivered materials directly to Reliance Industries Limited on a regular basis, with each delivery supported by a valid invoice and e-way bill. 

 
As this was a continuous supply arrangement, we issue periodic invoices that consolidate all deliveries made to Reliance Industries within the billing period, ensuring accurate 

and efficient accounting of supplies. 

 
The advance received from RIL was Rs. 51.42 cr (Rs. 60.68 crores including GST & TDS) against which supplies made till 31st March, 2025 was Rs. 51.42 cr. 

Order is stand fulfilled and completed as of 31.03.2025 

 

41 The business operations of Corporate Office premises are conducted on a sub-leased premises. Our inability to continue operating from such premises, or to seek renewal or 
extension of such leases may materially affect our business operations.Corporate Office is located at 1616, WTT Building, 16th Floor, Sector 16, Noida, Uttar Pradesh – 201301 
wherein the company has brought out the said premises by paying the sales consideration to the ET Infra Developers Private Limited. However, as per the original lease 

agreement dated August 03, 2010 is required to enter into a sub-lease agreement with the company till the registration of ownership is registered with the Nodia Government.  

Hence, the Company has entered into a sub-lease agreement with ET necessary stamp duty on the above mentioned premises and also notarized the said sub-lease 

agreement. However, the ownership of the above mentioned premises yet to be registered in the name of the Company as the stamp duty payment and other formalities related 

to the title transfer is to be completed at the Lessor’s end. In necessary formalities with the Nodia Government for the company to claim the ownership on above mentioned 

premises. Further, the Company has obtained various secured loans from Bank of India. In this regards, corporate office is mortgaged and hypothecated with Bank of India. 

Thought, our company repays the secured loan amount in a timely manner as per the terms and conditions of the loan agreement and have provided all the necessary 

documents relating to the sub-lease agreement, stamp-duty payment, possession letter as provided by the Lessee, we cannot assure that the bank may invoke the mortgage.  If 

any such events occur, Company's operations and cash flows may be adversely impact and may divert management attention from the business operations. Given that 

business operations are conducted on above mentioned premises, any adverse impact on, or deficiency in the title and/or ownership rights or breach of the terms of any sub- 

lease agreements may materially affect the business operations. 

42 The Company is engaged primarily in business of engineering, procurement and construction (EPC), engineering Goods and spares, construction material, pollution control and 

renewable energy projects. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) 108 dealing with the segment reporting 

43 Financial Risk Management objectives and policies: 

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the 

Managing Board. 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial 

instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive 

instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits , receivables, payables and loans and borrowings. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
i Market Risk (Interest rate risk): 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates 



According to the Company’s interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability 

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 0.50% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key 

management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. 

Exposure to Interest Risks 

 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 

2025 

As at 31st March, 

2024 

Total Borrowings (Including current maturity of long term debt) 49.85 109.58 

% of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest 100.00 100.00 

 
Interest Rate Sensitivity 

A change of 0.50% in interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 

2025 

As at 31st March, 

2024 

0.50% increase would decrease the profit before tax by 0.25 0.55 

0.50% decrease would Increase the profit before tax by 0.25 0.55 

 
ii Credit Risks 

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial 

reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial 

assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. 

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through 

each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with 

the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding- looking information such as: 

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, 

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counter-party, 

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counter-party’s ability to meet its obligations. 

iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counter-party, 

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company. 

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business 

environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Subject to notes and balance written off, based on the historical 

data, loss on collection of other receivable is provided as follows: 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 

2025 

As at 31st March, 

2024 

Short Term Loans and Advances (Unsecured, considered Good) 5294.71 6989.07 

Less: Expected Credit Allowance 11.96 5.98 
 

5282.75 6983.09 

Ageing of Account Receivables 

 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 

2025 

As at 31st March, 

2024 

Up to 6 Months 305.38 1,066.00 

6 to 12 Months 49.09 45.35 

More than 12 Months 562.74 534.07 

Less: Expected Credit Allowance 335.96 208.07 

Total 581.25 1,437.35 

 
iii Liquidity Risks 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 

facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under 

committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. 

 

 

 
Maturity Pattern of Borrowings 

Particulars 0-1 Year 1 to 3 Years 3 to 5 years 
5 years and 

above 
Total 

As at 31st March, 2025      

Long Term Borrowings 0.00 31.76 0.00 0.00 31.76 

Short Term Borowings 575.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 575.08 

Total 575.08 31.76 0.00 0.00 606.85 

As at 31st March 2024      

Long Term Borrowings 0.00 73.64 0.00 0.00 73.64 

Short Term Borowings 529.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 529.68 

Total 529.68 73.64 0.00 0.00 603.32 

 

 
Maturity patterns of other Financial Liabilities other than borrowings 

Particulars 0-3 Months 3 to6 Months 6 to 12 Months 
12 months 
and above 

Total 

As at 31st March, 2025      

Trade Payables 3846.83 0.00 0.00 50.45 3897.27 

Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 3846.83 0.00 0.00 50.45 3897.27 

As at 31st March 2024     0.00 

Trade Payables 565.96 - - 0.63 566.59 

Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) - - - - - 

Total 565.96 - - 0.63 566.59 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
44 Financial Ratios 

 
SR.N 

 
Ratio 2024-25 2023-24 Variance (In %) 

Reason of 
Variance 

 

 

 
1 

 

Current ratio (Current 

Assets/Current Liabilities) 

 

1.35 

 

1.24 

 

8.27 

Ratio Improved 

due to reduction in 

Trade Payables 



 Current Assets 6264.66 9129.61   

 Current Liabilities 4654.35 7343.97   

 

 

2 

 

Return on equity ratio (Profit after 

Taxes/Shareholders Equity) 

 

 
1.03 

 

 
2.59 

 

 
(60.34) 

Lower profits due 

to Lower margins 

for attarcting 

customers 
 Profit After Taxes 23.16 61.29   

 Shareholders Equity 2257.78 2370.43   

 

 
3 

Net profit ratio (Net Profit after 

Taxes/Sales) 

 

0.32 

 

2.03 

 

(84.33) 

Lower profits due 

to Lower margins 

for attarcting 

customers 
 Net Profit after Taxes 23.16 61.29  

 Sales 7265.34 3012.86  

 

 
4 

Return on capital employed (Profit 

before Interest and Taxes/Capital 

Employed) 

 
3.30% 

 
5.32% 

 
38.03 

Lower profits due 

to Lower margins 

for attarcting 

customers 
 Profit before Interest and Taxes 76.56 131.61  

 Capital Employed 2322.18 2473.92  

5 Return on investment - - NA  

 
6 

Debt-equity ratio (Total 
Debts/Shareholders Equity) 0.27 0.25 5.60 

 
Almost Same 

 Total Debts 606.85 603.32   

 Shareholders Equity 2257.78 2370.43   

 
7 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Net 

Opertaing Income/Debts) 
 

0.86 
 

2.55 
(66.40) 

Lower profits due 

to Lower margins 

for attarcting 

customers 

 Net Operating Profit 91.94 149.77  

 Debt Service 107.44 58.81  

 

8 

 

Inventory turnover ratio (Cost of 

Goods Sold/Avg Inventory) 

 
177.92 

 
88.57 

 
100.88 

Purchases 

Increased to meer 

order obligations 
 Cost of Goods Sold 6737.05 2238.05   

 Average Inventory 37.87 25.27   

 

 
9 

Trade receivables turnover ratio 

(Net Credit Sales/Avg Trade 

Receivables) 

 

 
7.20 

 

 
2.20 

 
227.83 

 

 
Sales Increased 

 Net Credit Sales 7265.34 3012.86   

 Average Trade Receivables 1009.30 1372.15   

 

 
10 

Trade payables turnover ratio (Net 

Credit Purchases/Avg. Trade 

Payables) 

 

 
3.02 

 

 
4.19 

 

27.92 Payables 

increased 
 Net Credit Purchases 6738.68 2261.62   

 Average Trade Payables 2231.93 539.92   

 
11 

Net capital turnover ratio (Net 
Sales/Capital Employed) 

 
3.13 

 
1.22 156.90 

 
Sales Increased 

 Net Sales 7265.34 3012.86   

 Net Capital Employed 2322.18 2473.92   

 
45 Additional Regulatory Information 

The disclosures required by amendment to Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act,2013 are given only to the extent applicable: 

i. Title deeds of immovable property other than proper taken on lease by duly executed lease agreement are held in the name of the company. 

ii. During the year there has been no change in the aggregate of the net carrying value of assets on account of revaluation in respect of Property, Plant & Equipment and 

intangible assets. 

iii. There are no intangible assets under development in the Company during the current reporting period. 

iv. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and 

the rules made thereunder 

v. The company does have borrowings from banks against the security of current assets. 

vi. The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India. 

vii. The company has not entered in to any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,2013. 

viii. There are no charges or satisfaction of charges yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

ix. The borrowing taken by the company from the banks has been used for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. 

x. There are no transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 which have not been 

recorded in the books of account 

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 are integral part of the financial 

statements 

In terms of our report attached 

For Hiren Buch Associates 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

FRN : 116131W  
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                                                                                                                                                        Shantanu Srivastava Neelam Gupta 

Managing Director &CEO Executive Director and CFO 

DIN No.00022662 DIN No.06823562 

Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi 

Date : 22nd May 2025 Date : 22nd May 2025 
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Partner Company Secretary 
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